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About Us

We are an independent and not-for-profit organisation providing
quality housing for the people of Hong Kong. With the support of
Government, we have implemented various housing schemes to
meet the needs of niche markets. We are governed by Members
with a Supervisory Board and an Executive Committee made up of
professionals coming from different sectors of the community.

Established in 1948, we have been serving our community with a
social mission. Though this mission has evolved in tandem with the
city over the years, the mandate of the Housing Society to serve the
community remains unchanged.
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Mission and Vision

Hong Kong Housing Society is a non-government organisation
aiming to serve the needs of the Hong Kong community in housing
and related services. We strive to be a world-class housing solution
provider and innovator with leadership in quality, value for money
and management. We put customer, quality, talent and prudence as
the core values that support our guiding principles.

Customer Prudence ——

E)iNEZa

B —EBL R FIEE - REE
MREHEDEMN - EBRITHSHT
BABERT TRANEENS - BEA™5
MRRIFE - RPRZBER  MES
gk TREENKEOREHLE TR
MBS -

B—NENFERILIAK - BAIFALE
Eap RISALEY - BB IR BEE ]
BEBRDEE  EEH—AEEVAR
BRAFHYIR R o

0oDooD0DOoDOoODODODODDODOGO

~e MR

FEFEEmE R —ERFBAHE - Br
EREAMREEEE RAROIRS -
BB R T E MR TEAIF - A
ZRMFUKY - WEEER - MENREES
EEEEI - HIA [BEERE]

[BERE] ~ [ATRE] & [ER
RAl RER BEREXRRA -



Contents Bk

2 Projects at a Glance BHE—8
10  Event Highlights AEMB
12 Chairman’s Statement FRHRS
18 CEO'’s Review of Operations THRRHXKORE
27  Corporate Structure AERE
Supervisory Board BES
Executive Committee HITEES
Other Committees HihZES
Other Members Hih%8
The Directorate MRESEK
Senior Management Team SHERBABS
40  Business Overview KIFIRE
Meeting the Needs Contributing to
of an Ageing Building a Sustainable
Population Quality Homes Community

40/ %R ADME 58/ RIzEERM 72/ HROUBEHE

Serving Our Residents Connecting with

with Excellence Our Stakeholders
50/ MR ER 78/ BMBEHNE

86 Corporate Sustainability PEEBERE
Financial Management B EIE
Corporate Governance P¥EEB
Enterprise Risk Management EXRREIE
Employee Engagement and Information S TRAFRNEFR R
Technology

119 Independent Auditor’s Report B REES

125 Audited Financial Statement EE I IRE

202 Five-Year Financial Summary hFHHERHE



® Projects at a Glance
IBH—8

HOUSING SCHEMES
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* Rental housing blocks and Flat-For-Sale blocks within the same estate are counted as separate projects.
RE—-EBNHEREREEREEFORABLABE

Rental Estate A EE

20 rental estates located on Hong Kong Island and in Kowloon and the New BREB-TELBEEBMIATRES NEK
Territories currently provide homes for about 83,000 people. All are designed to MASE BRAZL 83,000 RIEH R AK
meet the needs of low-income families with rents at a discount to market price. WARE e EATEKTFE -

Urban Improvement Scheme mEXEsEtE|

Commenced in the early 1970s, projects under this Scheme are built to RETFROFABAERFARETENE
improve the living environment in dilapidated urban areas. 30 projects have FRE -EEKFHE SEA=THEER"
been redeveloped after pulling down the old buildings to provide a total of HIBH 5620 EEA UTHEBEAREE -

5,620 flats. The flats are sold at full market value to the general public.

Rural Public Housing BRAHEE

Three rural housing projects have been built in Sai Kung and Sha Tau Kok. ERBRSHEANZEER REBERZEN
They are provided for families in rural areas whose homes have been cleared RERERRBHESSEMN  WAERERBHHESK
for redevelopment. The flats are rented or sold at concessionary rate. In 2013, BE-FHBER_T—=FEBRNEENIHE
the Government invited the Housing Society to develop more rental flats in ARERANEZEEZHESEN  UiEaEANE
the restricted area of Sha Tau Kok to cope with the increasing demand of the EHERk HERZZ—LFEK-

local population, with completion in 2017.
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Flat-For-Sale Scheme

Launched in the late 1980s, ten projects with a total of 10,360 flats are located
throughout Hong Kong under this Scheme. Similar to the Home Ownership
Scheme of the Housing Authority, the flats are sold at a discount to meet

the ownership aspirations of low to middle-income families. In line with the

Government policy, flat production under this Scheme has ceased since late 2002.

Sandwich Class Housing Scheme KilpEBEE5E

Launched in the early 1990s amid the surge of property prices, ten residential
developments across Hong Kong provide a total of 8,920 flats for the middle-
income families. Flats are sold at concessionary prices to eligible families and
subject to resale conditions. Flat production under this Scheme has been
suspended since 1998.

Full Market Value Development

Upon the suspension of the Sandwich Class Housing Scheme, three projects
under development have been converted to private properties for sale to
the public at full market value. These include Cayman Rise in Kennedy Town,
Mountain Shore in Ma On Shan and Serenity Place in Tseung Kwan O.

Senior Citizen Residences Scheme

This innovative Scheme for the middle-income elderly provides ‘one-stop” homes
with housing, recreation, medical and care facilities all under the same roof. Two
pilot projects, Jolly Place in Tseung Kwan O and Cheerful Court in Jordan Valley,
providing a total of 576 flats are leased for life to eligible senior citizens.

Urban Renewal Project

Under the Memorandum of Understanding signed with the Urban Renewal
Authority in 2002 , the Housing Society has undertaken five redevelopment
projects in Sham Shui Po and one in Shau Kei Wan to provide a total of 1,531
private residential flats. All the six projects were completed between 2013
and 2016.

Quality Elderly Housing Project BEREREEEE

Launched for lease in 2015, The Tanner Hill is a non-subsidised elderly housing
project providing 588 age-friendly individual residential flats completed with
lifestyle, home-care support, Chinese and Western healthcare, as well as skilled
care services to create a quality retirement living for the residents.

Subsidised Sale Flats Project

In 2012, the Government changed the original My Home Purchase Plan project
in Tsing Yi to a Subsidised Sale Flats project named Greenview Villa which
provides 988 small-and-medium flats for sale at discounted prices to eligible
people. The Government subsequently entrusted the Housing Society with
similar projects in Sha Tin, Tuen Mun and Tseung Kwan O.
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Projects at a Glance IEE—&

PROJECTS DEVELOPED

PR RIAB
Projects Completion No. of Flats
) Year £t El
ERER

Rental Estate
HilEw

Ma Tau Chung SERTER* 1955 184
Cottage Area*
Hung Hom Estate* AR o 1955/58 1,256

Kai Tak Estate* R 1960/61/81 839
Kwun Tong BREEAE 19606567 4922
Garden Estate 87/91

Ming Wah Dai Ha L EIN 1962/63/65/78 2,516
Yue Kwong Chuen -l 1962/63/65 1,144

Chun Seen Mei Chuen ~ EE#T 1965 1,027
Healthy Village [ ERA 1965/93 1,189
Lok Man Sun Chuen BRI 1970/71/73/74 3,674
Lai Tak Tsuen BE® 1975/76 2675
Jat Min Chuen L 1981/82 3,747
Ka Wai Chuen RET 1984/87/90/93 1,676
Broadview Garden B 1991 448
Prosperous Garden FRRIE 1991 665
Verbena Heights iR 199 971

Total 8% 34,982

* Redeveloped

ErHER

Note: The above numbers of flats exclude the demolished flats of existing rental estates.

o NEENBEYARBERFHAEBADFEEL-
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Projects Completion No. of Flats
B8 Year E0E i El
ERER
Urban Improvement Scheme
L ER
Lai Yan Lau BEE 1980 100
Oi kwan Court BHE 1980 147
Western Garden rE 1982 432
5SUpper Station Street ~ ZfEEH 55 1983 5
221 Temple Street B 221 % 1983 5
Regal Court KK 1984 60
Ko Wang Court VA 1985 24
Yuen Fai Court RiER 1985 56
Kin Wo Court feziles 1986 20
1 Hee Wong Terrace Z2215% 1987 188
7 Ping Lan Street FRE 7% 1987 5
June Garden BEE 1988 480
10 Tai Pak Terrace ABZ10% 1988 12
Dragon Centre EER 1989 30
Lascar Court B 1991 24
Yuk Ming Towers §HE 1991 326
Elegance Court BbiZ 1993 69
Prosperity Court BEXAE 1994 104
Jubilant Place METEE 1998 900
Hollywood Terrace WEEREE 1999 550

Total B8 5,620
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Projects Completion No. of Flats
B8 Year £t Gl
EHER

Rural Public Housing

BEALEE

Sha Tau Kok Chuen W AR 1988/89/ 802
91/2017
Lakeside Garden RERE 1997 234
Total 8% 1,338
Flat-For-Sale Scheme
FBEH2
Clague Garden Estate ~ #TEBE 1989 926
Ka Wai Chuen R4 B 1990/93 892
Broadview Garden REER 1991 1328
Healthy Village BRAY 1993/97 1,048
Cronin Garden SERE 1995 728
Bo Shek Mansion EORE 1996 400
Verbena Heights e 1997 1,894
Lakeside Garden RETE 1997 736
Kai Tak Garden RIETEE 1998 1,256
Kingston Terrace i} 2002 1,152

Total B2 10,360

Sandwich Class Housing Scheme
Fih PR Es 2

Tivoli Garden TR EE 1995 1,024
Park Belvedere i34 1998 882
Hibiscus Park AR 1998 40
Marina Habitat BBERE 1998 992
The Pinnacle R 1998 1424
Cascades fREE 1998 712
Highland Park ERE 1998 1456
Sunshine Grove BELE 1998 508
Radiant Towers JEbES 1998 704
Bel Air Heights 1 BEEF 1999 798

Total 2% 8,920

gooo
gooo

gooo
171

PROJECTS DEVELOPED B#&RIEB

Projects Completion No. of Flats
BB Year Edink i ]
BRER

Full Market Value Development
miEBRIER

Mountain Shore 2000 1124
2000 1526
Total % 3,146

Serenity Place ’TSIL\

Senior Citizen Residences Scheme

[RELZRBL] HR25H3
Cheerful Court YEE 2004 333
Total 88 576

Urban Renewal Project
mESEREE

Harmony Place SR 2014 274
Heya Delight ER 2015 130
Heya Crystal EE 2016 350
Heya Aqua EX 2016 275

Total 8% 1,531

Quality Elderly Housing Project
BERERERE

Total 8% 588

Subsidised Sale Flats Project
EMEERREER

Total 4% 988

EEEEBHE2018/19FEFR
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Projects at a Glance IEB—%

PROPERTIES UNDER MANAGEMENT
=FEINEYIES

As at 31 March 2019 H#Z=F—AF=A=+—HIt

Property Location No. of Flats
LIES ith(& e (=]

[ | Rental Estate and Rural Public Housing Bl B R BELAHERE

Ming Wah Dai Ha HEXNE Shau Kei Wan LEE 2,516
Yue Kwong Chuen B Aberdeen BB 1,144
Chun Seen Mei Chuen HEEEN Ma Tau Wai SEEE 1,027
Healthy Village & FRAY North Point kA 1,189
Lok Man Sun Chuen LR A To Kwa Wan 4+ T2 3,674
Lai Tak Tsuen B 1= 4R Tai Hang Rt 2,675
Jat Min Chuen 2 BR YR Sha Tin Y H 3,747
Ka Wai Chuen RHUETB Hung Hom FAR:1] 1,676
Sha Tau Kok Chuen Y58 AR Sha Tau Kok Y EE A 802
Clague Garden Estate M IEBE IR Tsuen Wan ey 553
Prosperous Garden IR Yau Ma Tei B8 i 4 664
Bo Shek Mansion EAKNE Tsuen Wan ey 267
Lakeside Garden RYEEE Sai Kung i) 234
[ | Urban Improvement Scheme m@c{Z5t2|
Jubilant Place fReTER To Kwa Wan 4 & 900

/) Flat-For-Sale Scheme F£25&5t281

Clague Garden Estate HTIEE TR Tsuen Wan 2 926
Ka Wai Chuen B Hung Hom FAR: | 892
Broadview Garden FERiEE Tsing Yi &5 1,328
Healthy Village i BR AT North Point id=:! 1,048
Bo Shek Mansion EAKRE Tsuen Wan e 400
Lakeside Garden REIEE Sai Kung sl 736
Kingston Terrace == Tuen Mun Cs! 1,152

s 0000

Jooo
Jooo
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PROPERTIES UNDER MANAGEMENT &I1280#%

Property | Location No. of Flats
M (@ e E]
5
Tivoli Garden B EE Tsing Vi 5 1,024
Park Belvedere i =] Ma On Shan BEz L 882
Sunshine Grove BEEE Sha Tin pidss 508
Cascades ik =F Ho Man Tin Al H 712
Highland Park HERE Kwai Chung A 1,456
The Pinnacle B2 Tseung Kwan O 5 E R 1,424
Bel Air Heights 138 BE#F Diamond Hill #EALL 798

[u] Private Development i A2 RIEEB

Harmony Place e Shau Kei Wan g 274
Heya Delight ER Sham Shui Po KPS 130
Heya Aqua % Sham Shui Po R 275

[ | Senior Citizen Residences Scheme [REBZRB%E | (t=E512l

Cheerful Court AL Jordan Valley EHA 333

Quality Elderly Housing Project BBREERIEB

Other Properties under Management EHth&I1280¥) %

Housing Society Golden EihesE Wan Chai BT -
Jubilee Building
Shing Tak Street Centre BB Ma Tau Wai EEE =

od

———— O™

=—| oo N
———

———— [y

oo
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Projects at a Glance IEB—&

PROJECTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION

HEEDIIEE
Property Location Expected No. of Flats
mE thE Completion Year £ (E]
BESERER

o Subsidised Sale Flats Project EEIBERFRIEB
Greenhill Villa KRR TETE Sha Tin A H 2019 1,020
Terrace Concerto RIS= Tuen Mun o 2019 290
Mount Verdant BEE Tseung Kwan O #§ER 2020 330

0 Rental Estate Redevelopment Bl E#ERIEBE
Ming Wah Dai Ha HEAESERZIER Shau Kei Wan &2 & 2020 966

Redevelopment (Phase I) (F—H0)

S Senior Citizen Residences Scheme [ R&EZ % | (X252

Lee Kung Street FIHE Hung Hom AT H) 2022 312

o Mixed Housing Development j2&T BE%RIEE

Pak Wo Road EEil Fanling k] 2024 1,467
ik Rl el S
Property Location Expected No. of Flats
mE thE Completion Year g i(E]
TSt BRE
A Subsidised Sale Flats Project EEIHEERIER
Jockey Club Road BeE Fanling 48 2024 648
Anderson Road Quarry R2-2 ~ RiEREBEAES Kwong Tong  Ei¥E 2025 1,400
R2-2 it
Anderson Road Quarry R2-3  ZiERBAES Kwong Tong  ER¥E 2025 420
R2-3 $ it
Anderson Road Quarry R2-4 ~ ZiEREAIES KwongTong  EiJE 2026 960
R2-4 5% 3
Kai Tak Area 2B1 FBUEEE 2B [& 1 5% Kai Tak = 2026 1,790
A Rental Estate Development il E#b2%REIEE
Ting On Street E L Ngau Tau Kok 4587 2023 378
(Rehousing Site) (B2 )
Shek Pai Wan Road AHEEBE Aberdeen BT 2024 600
(Rehousing Site) (B2 )
A
Ming Wah Dai Ha FHEXNESRZIAR Shau Kei Wan &2 i 2026 1,595
Redevelopment (Phase II) (Z—10)

A Mixed Housing Development j2&T BE%RIEE

Hung Shui Kiu (Phase ) HEKKE (F—HF) Hung ShuiKiu  H#t7kiE 2024 606
Kai Tak Area 1E1 R 1E 21574 Kai Tak RuUE 2025 2,050

EBREERHE 2018/19FEFR



Event Highlights
ASHRE

The 70™ Anniversary cocktail
reception was officiated by the Chief
Executive of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Mrs Carrie Lam
who was joined by some 600 guests
at the celebration.

EmttRAFEREShE BT

HETREEHSABTE - 05E
LEEBE—%  XAHTHEH -
J

The first “T-Home"
transitional housing
scheme was launched at
Yue Kwong Chuen.

RO HE & E [ &7
£
L TE|IBENEREE - -“"::L--
The 70" Anniversary roving exhibitions were staged at different
venues across the territory to showcase precious old photos and Sep = N\
RIS N The second “T-Home" scheme:
[EHEEERELTF] MERNE > HTREERG “Letting Scheme for Subsidised
\ BEREEMERR MEM® ° Y, Sale Developments with Premium
Unpaid" was launched, allowing
Jun-Aug /xH-/J\B ~ eligible owners to let individual
> Roving E Photo Exhibiti 3 bedroom(s) of their flat with
e — - oving Estate Photo Exhibitions acros;] | premium unpaid to eligible
. Py 1 ?" rental estates, and shopping promotion household tenants as transitional
~ ﬁ- ‘4 'y = campaign were held to celebrate the ——
AR r 11 70" Anniversary with our tenants. e — (AR ”%'J o A R L Y
o' i iy - L 1T — = = | FTEl  BEraEM e
T L] . A — 3 387 =] o S
| LS e RRAD B R BRSO
}?QJ ’7‘3’%—2#}# r%%m%ﬂ)ﬁj /ﬁiﬁgﬁifﬁ *%fﬂﬁf’ﬁ?%iﬂ‘\fmﬁ%)_% S
FHELTRASF- -
_ L J
Jan —H
¥ The Government has » The Ageing-in-Place i i L o »_
allocated four sites at Kai  Joint District Meeting N ﬁ.;.., Lr‘ﬂf"ﬂﬁ-!"'-l‘:. r:" -!'x ‘-?. .
Tak Area and Anderson cum Study Result ¥ i 5 o IV RE AT
Road Quarry to the Sharing Forum was 2y L pn Sol.. j
Housing Society for organised, inviting 1 it
developing Subsidised collaborators including - : : :
Sale Flats projects. representatives from » The 14" Hong Kong ST AR R Y | |ise ;-ﬁi 1{'! .
B AT 4 10 8 e A B 3¢ the social welfare and Housing Society N T S ) ! v ; Fiog @ b Ly
EAZEE ARE R A medical sectors to Award Presentation 1: - . k. LY ” e phE ! ;
BT R BERZEY exchange viewson Ceremony was held to |'k F e _ _.f:""': 3 ‘.l- - !l; _'i-._, Y ‘_ 1
HYEERIEE - elderly care services. present scholarships [;:“' n N By . L - 1 =
B [28 %) R 2ndbursariesto 9% -jmﬂmﬁﬁii-5544$?§£&”%” 3
' | ' LETEE i‘ﬂlﬁ = students from ten e g oy l‘F i
il . . BHEmfAo=Ze . 3 tertaryinstitutes.
’;"irf — BEEEREEARE BEEHINE [ EAREGEENEEHE) BERE  AREHHASR
- { —RRRLRERGER o RONTAURIBEEEGHES o
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The 66" Annual General Meeting was held on 6 September to elect
members of the new Supervisory Board.

RAARBETNERTRERFEZERE]
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BHI—EEEEKE -

9 BENEEEEMNE - RS
= AEYADEERRBRES - (55
T HAFESHZ—-
Oct +8 N _ . Y,
1 «In “The Chief Dec +—HA
Executive’s A
2018 Policy The first Exhibition Centre of Housing
Address’, it was Society was opened to showcase housing
tak?gglé?/gfgniitt development milestones and strengthen ties
e allloreiiee] 2 with the community. \
Kai Tak site to BEAFHERERL]EXMA  BREE
the Housing BRFERERNRETRAEE o
Society to
facilitate the
redevelopment
of Chun Seen Mei Chuen, and accepted the Housing Society's
recommendation to launch a “Flat for Flat Pilot Scheme for Elderly Owners”
for its subsidised sale units with premium unpaid.
(ITRERE 2018 g Bk ¥R 5 ) A0 U 5 — iR BRI B 7 5 16 - (2
BREEENNBEREMRE  WEAEHHESR  E8 FTOREEEDHE
BT [ REEFERE LGS
_ J

The 70" Anniversary International
Housing Conference entitled “Building
a Smart and Liveable City for an
Ageing Community” was organised

to examine the challenges and
opportunities arising from the ageing
populations around the globe.

B

Ingfk A O £

AX oK ER BJ E'E)Ei}ﬁﬁij BE

Wi =5

The Government announced to grant
the Housing Society future sites for
rental housing at a nominal land
premium of HK$ 1,000 and those for
Subsidised Sale Flats projects at one-
third of full market value.

BUR 20 B 18 A R B 1,000 78
fcﬁtiﬂ%%ﬁ%%ﬂj HED - FIA
Z*i‘@%ﬁbiﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬂﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬂ

¥ The secondary school drama competition
“Generation Gap? No Way!" was held, with
contesting teams sharing their aspirations and
views on inter-generational relationships through
captivating performance on stage.

B2 $
: 2455 Bl A
}Eﬁ%ﬁ[;ﬁ& A Announced to pilot the
i Y8 ;é %iﬁ e first elderly housing project
s' \ e ; & A é in Jat Min Chuen constructed
Tt M i
: !j‘ =g EEmy UNg Modular Integrated

Construction (MiC) in Hong
Kong.
AMERZABATAEE
BERTHEEAEK] BERE
HEnNREFEES -

J
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Chairman’s Statement
FREWHRS

We have been working hand in hand with
the Government in looking for alternative
ways of increasing the supply of
affordable housing, including exploring
areas for development and initiatives

with regard to unleashing the potential

of existing housing resources. Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok

SBS, JP
N . » RS e L
FHh—ERBREFEE HKIARAR S P

ERTRERMEZIBHENLERE"
BIERINERNRERREEREER

| feel deeply honoured and privileged to have been elected Chairman
of the Hong Kong Housing Society at a time of celebrating its 70™
Anniversary. For over half a century, the Housing Society has assumed
the role of a "housing laboratory”, creating some 70,000 homes for
Hong Kong in face of the daunting challenges of shortage in housing
supply.

During the year, the Hong Kong society has been embroiled in heated
debates over the issues of land and housing supply, as property prices
continued to mount and the number of public housing applications
reached record high.

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2018/19
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Against this backdrop, we have been working hand in hand with the
Government in looking for alternative ways of increasing the supply of
affordable housing, including exploring areas for development and
initiatives with regard to unleashing potential of existing housing
resources. We were invited by the Government in May 2017 to conduct
ecological and technical studies on the periphery of country parks in Tai
Lam and Ma On Shan, with the purpose of looking into their
development potential for purposes such as public housing and non-
profit elderly homes. Noting the recommendations of the Task Force on
Land Supply and the Government’s announcement in February 2019
that it would not at this stage further pursue the alternative land use of
country park periphery, the studies did not proceed further. Albeit, the
Housing Society would continue to look for viable options of housing
supply with a view to meeting the needs of the population and
facilitating the housing policies in Hong Kong.

B —ERBMEFEE  RITRFR -
HEATREHREZITEENEE 81
EMEEREARAEEEAR - B
E-tFRABERFEERNEREE L
2P BN B R B b A 1T AR AR R R AT
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TERESKREDT AEBELTH L
AR HEMECEILEEER - &E
mt - EHEEERAEEERES KA
ARR - URRTRNEERZREAS
BHE R o
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Chairman’s Statement EFE iR &

Meeting Housing Needs through Partnership with
the Government

Last year, in response to the revised pricing mechanism for Home
Ownership Scheme, the Government has approved to grant future sites
for our rental housing at a nominal land premium of HK$1,000 and

those for Subsidised Sale Flats (SSF) at one-third of the full market value.

The revised land premium arrangements will definitely help to bring
down our project costs, minimise the financial impact on the Housing
Society and maintain our corporate sustainability in providing
affordable housing and related services to the people of Hong Kong.

Meanwhile, the Housing Society has been given full support by the
Government to redevelop its aged rental estates with a view to
increasing the supply of public housing units and improving the living
environment of tenants. One of the sites in Kai Tak Area has been
allocated to us for facilitating the redevelopment of Chun Seen Mei
Chuen in the vicinity and also serving as a Dedicated Rehousing Estate
(DRE) for accommodating eligible households affected by government
development projects or projects of the Urban Renewal Authority (URA).

Besides, in collaboration with the Government, we are working on three
other DRE projects in Fanling, Hung Shui Kiu and Kwu Tung North. The
project in Fanling, situated at Pak Wo Road, will be the first DRE to offer
a non-means-tested rehousing option, in the form of rental housing
and SSF, as part of the enhancements to the compensation and
rehousing arrangements for eligible households affected by
government'’s development clearance exercises.

Optimising Housing Resources to Ensure Efficient
Use

From time to time, the Housing Society has put forward novel ideas of
housing solutions and tendered advice regarding housing policies with
a view to optimising housing resources.
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We have never lost sight of the well-being and housing needs, be they
temporary, of those in dire straits. In order to provide temporary homes
for those on the waiting list for public rental housing who are in need
of improving the living conditions, we launched two transitional
housing initiatives in 2018. The first “T-Home" was implemented in July
at one of our rental estates Yue Kwong Chuen, with 217 vacant rental
units pending redevelopment refurbished to provide temporary
accommodation. The project was well-received as the living conditions
of the new tenants have been greatly improved.

We launched the “Letting Scheme for Subsidised Sale Developments
with Premium Unpaid” (Letting Scheme) in September 2018 on a pilot
basis as one of the measures proposed in “The Chief Executive’s 2017
Policy Address” to help alleviate the hardship faced by families waiting
for public rental housing and the inadequately housed with transitional
accommodation. Response to the scheme was relatively lukewarm. An
online survey was subsequently conducted to collect views from over
1,400 respondents. We are currently reviewing the enhancement
measures with a view to rolling out these measures in the latter half of 2019.

In the meantime, we have been exploring other potential sites and
options for providing more transitional housing for the people in need.
After examining more than ten potential projects, we are planning to
enter into an agreement with the MTR Corporation Limited for using
the vacant flats of one of their premises, Trackside Villas in Tai Po, as
another "“T-Home" project.

In the 2018 Policy Address, the Chief Executive has announced to
accept our recommendation of a “Flat for Flat Pilot Scheme for Elderly
Owners”. Under the scheme, owners aged 60 or over who have owned
a subsidised sale unit for at least 10 years can sell their original flat and
then buy a smaller one in the Secondary Market without payment of
premium. This will help to ensure more efficient use of public housing
resources by providing eligible elderly owners with an option to
purchase smaller subsidised sale units which better suit their needs and
circumstances, while vacating the larger flats currently owned for
eligible families in need of more living space. We are finalising the
implementation framework of the Pilot Scheme which will be open for
application in the latter half of 2019

Caring for the Elderly with “Ageing in Place”

Creating homes for people in need, particularly the elderly, is always a
satisfying experience. As the pioneer in providing elderly housing in
Hong Kong, we have implemented the “Ageing-in-Place” (AIP) Scheme
across 20 of our rental estates. The AIP Scheme has greatly benefitted
the elderly tenants, as proven by a 4-year evaluation study undertaken
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Chairman’s Statement EFE iR &

by The University of Hong Kong. Results from the study showed that
the elderly tenants have been experiencing a better quality of life with
the scheme. | feel particularly delighted to know that our investments
have generated impressive social returns.

Building on the success of two pilot projects of the Senior Citizen
Residences Scheme (SEN), we are now looking to create more SEN
projects. Currently, a third SEN project at Lee Kung Street in Hung Hom
is underway, which is expected to provide 300 more flats to serve the
needs of middle-income elderly.

To further promote the benefits of “ageing in place”, we have striven to
send the message across by arranging tours and visits to our elderly
housing projects for the local and overseas government officials,
industry leaders, young professionals as well as the media. To facilitate
exchange of views and information with industry professionals over
issues of elderly housing and sustainable growth, we have hosted a
series of forum and seminar, to name but a few, the International
Housing Conference “Building a Smart and Liveable City for an Ageing
Community” and Seminar on “Housing Planning for the Ageing
Population in Hong Kong". We hope the formation of a public discourse
on issues relating to ageing will help to drive the Government and key
market players to put more efforts into the provision of elderly housing
and services, and to consider the use of age-friendly features in their
new developments.
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Exploring Innovative Technologies to Build Better
Homes

As a "housing laboratory”, we continuously embrace innovation for
better efficiency, productivity and cost control on our projects. In
support of the Government's drive to adopt “Modular Integrated
Construction” (MiC) approach in building construction, an open area in
Jat Min Chuen was identified to build around 70 elderly flats with the
MiC approach. By using the method of factory assembly followed by
on-site installation, it will help to improve site safety, reduce
construction waste and minimise disturbance and noise to nearby
residents.

Apart from MiC, we will be adopting the technology of Building
Information Modelling for our project at Ting On Street, a site
earmarked for rehousing Kwun Tong Garden Estate I, due to be
completed in 2023. The use of the new technology will help to bring
benefits like improving building quality, optimising planning and
design, and enhancing workers’ safety. By harnessing the power of
these advanced construction and digital technologies, | believe we will
be able to build more desirable homes for both the people and the
environment.
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‘ ‘ Since our establishment 70 years
ago, we have been persistently
engaged in achieving the mission
of providing adequate and
affordable housing for people in
Hong Kong, as well as creating
homes for those in need.

EHEtTFAMILES —BEERRF
REEMRREHESEKIGRENERE"
MRREFTEALERZRE - , ’

Mr Wong Kit-loong
SiERekE




In face of acute shortage in land and housing supply, it has been a real
challenge for the Housing Society to accomplish its goals while
overcoming all the hurdles. Nevertheless, the support from the
Government and all the stakeholders has been a strong backing for our
work and sustainable development, particularly in the areas of
subsidised sale flats, transitional housing and dedicated rehousing
estates. Creating homes for those in need, particularly the elderly, has
been one of our top priorities. With Hong Kong seeing major
redevelopments and rejuvenation in recent years, we will continue to

play a key role in addressing the housing needs of citizens in Hong Kong.

Putting Housing Initiatives into Action
Subsidised Sale Flats

Over the years, we have been working closely with the Government in
the provision of Subsidised Sale Flats (SSF) to increase the supply of
affordable housing in Hong Kong. Our second SSF project, the Greenbhill
Villa in Sha Tin, is close to completion, and the flats are expected to be
handed over to purchasers by the first quarter of 2020. Other on-going
projects, namely Terrace Concerto at Tuen Mun and Mount Verdant at
Tseung Kwan O, are also in steady progress, with expected completion
in 2019 and 2020 respectively as well. These three projects will add
1,640 flats to our subsidised housing portfolio.

Last year, the Government reviewed the land premium arrangements
for our subsidised housing projects and approved to grant our future
sites for rental housing at a nominal land premium of HK$1,000 and
those for SSF at one-third of full market value. As an immediate impact,
the HK$1.3 billion land premium payments originally earmarked for the
Shek Pai Wan Road project and Ting On Street project would not be
expended. These arrangements could help ensure the sustainability of
our business in the long-term, in meeting the housing needs of our
Hong Kong citizens.
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To meet the Government's target of boosting the supply of subsidised
housing, the Housing Society has been invited to take up a site at Kai
Tak Area and three others at Anderson Road Quarry for SSF
developments, which will provide about 4,600 new SSF units. The
construction of the first site at Anderson Road Quarry is expected to
commence in 2020. Meanwhile, our SSF project at Jockey Club Road in
Fanling, which will offer 648 flats, is under planning. Along with policy
support from the Government, we will continue seeking potential sites
and resources to develop SSF projects in meeting the aspiration of
home ownership among Hong Kong people.

Estate Redevelopment Projects

As a significant portion of our rental estates are over 40 years of age, we
have placed the redevelopment of these aged estates as one of our
major priorities in recent years. To ensure adequate rehousing
arrangements on the one hand and to minimise the impact of
rehousing on our existing tenants on the other, one major challenge is
to identify suitable sites for building decanting estates. Further to the
Government’s allocation in previous years of a site at Shek Pai Wan
Road and another at Ting On Street as respective decanting sites of Yue
Kwong Chuen and Kwun Tong Garden Estate, the Government has
allocated to the Housing Society during the review year a site at Kai Tak
Area to facilitate the redevelopment of Chun Seen Mei Chuen. The
vacated site of Chun Seen Mei Chuen can then be used to facilitate the
redevelopment of Lok Man Sun Chuen.

Currently, we have four redevelopment projects in the pipeline. For
Ming Wah Dai Ha, Phase | project is undergoing substantial progress
with completion expected in 2020. We are closely monitoring the

Age Profile of Rental Estates

th il 2 TR '

as at 31 March 2019
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“T-Home"” at Yue Kwong Chuen provides

over

construction progress to ensure timely delivery of works. The revised
Master Layout Plans for Phases Il and Ill have been approved to shorten
the redevelopment programme with the objective of minimising
nuisance caused to our tenants while speeding up the supply of
subsidised housing. Plans for redevelopment in Yue Kwong Chuen,
Kwun Tong Garden Estate and Chun Seen Mei Chuen have also been
drawn up as they await commencement of construction works of
decanting estates in 2019 and 2020.

Transitional Housing

In July 2018, we launched our first “T-Home" project, the transitional
housing catering for waitlisted applicants for public rental housing.
More than 200 vacant flats at Yue Kwong Chuen pending
redevelopment were refurbished and turned into “T-Home” with an
estimated cost of HK$26 million. A total of 1,399 applications were
received for the project. Soon after our speedy renovation work, tenants
started moving in from November 2018, and the project was very well
received. Riding on the success of the project, we are getting ready to
convert Trackside Villas in Tai Po, premises of MTR Corporation Limited,
into another transitional housing project, at a capital cost of some
HKS$10 million. This project is expected to be launched in late 2019 to
provide over 150 residential units to eligible households in need.

To increase the supply of potential transitional homes by releasing
existing housing spaces, we have also piloted the “Letting Scheme for
Subsidised Sale Developments with Premium Unpaid” in September
2018. Under the initial Scheme, owners of subsidised sale developments
(about 13,000 eligible flats) under the Housing Society are allowed to
let individual bedroom(s) to eligible families and individuals without
payment of premium. Since its launch, we had received a total of 13
owners’ applications with 5 “Eligible-To-Let Certificate” issued and 53
applications from tenant households with 23 “Eligible-To-Rent
Certificate” issued.

We are currently reviewing the enhancement measures in the hope of
increasing participation in the Scheme, after results of an online survey
involving more than 1,400 respondents revealed that 70% are in
support of leasing the entire flat to eligible tenant households with
premium unpaid.
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Dedicated Rehousing Estates

To support the Government’s development projects, we have been
planning DREs to accommodate residents affected by related clearance
exercises. The Pak Wo Road DRE project will provide about 510 public
rental flats, 700 SSF units and 260 Senior Citizen Residences (SEN) flats
with facilities including two Residential Care Homes for the Elderly, a
shopping centre and public parking spaces. Three additional sites have
been identified at Hung Shui Kiu, Kwu Tung North and Kai Tak by the
Government for the purpose of accommodating eligible households
affected by the Government’s upcoming development projects or
redevelopment projects. The planning and relevant procedures will be
undertaken by the Housing Society. These projects are expected to
complete progressively from 2024 onwards.

Housing Initiatives for the Elderly

2019 marks the 20™ anniversary of the Housing Society’s efforts in
elderly housing development. In the late 1990s, SEN was initiated with
the Government support. Under the Scheme, elderly housing
developments catering for the middle-income elderly are fitted with
elderly-friendly designs and features, in which lifetime lease tenants are
provided with one-stop holistic care. We are now planning to work on a
third SEN project at Lee Kung Street, Hung Hom, which is due for
completion in 2022 to provide about 300 flats. Incorporating the
experience from our two existing SEN projects, namely Jolly Place at
Tseung Kwan O and Cheerful Court in Jordan Valley, the new project
will have facilities and amenities catering to the preferred lifestyle of the
elderly tenants as expressed in their feedback on the two existing
projects.

Meanwhile, we are planning to build a 10-storey residential block with
about 70 elderly-friendly rental flats at Jat Min Chuen, by utilising the
unused plot ratio at the estate. Adopting the Modular Integrated

Over
B
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— improvement works at rental estates

s ] (JO-

allocated for 70 major

AT+ T EAREERPRETR

Construction (MiC) method, the works are expected to commence in
the first quarter of 2020 and due to be completed in 2022. Under-
occupied households at the estates, whose family members are all aged
70 or above, will be encouraged to transfer to the new block. At
present, there are 761 eligible households in our rental portfolio.

After the Government announced in the 2018 Policy Address the
introduction of a “Flat for Flat Pilot Scheme for Elderly Owners”, we have
been working closely with the Transport and Housing Bureau to look
into the details of implementing the Pilot Scheme. Under the Pilot
Scheme, owners aged 60 or above who have owned a subsidised sale
unit for at least ten years can sell their original flat and then buy a
smaller one in the Secondary Market without payment of premium,
providing eligible elderly owners with an option to move to a smaller
subsidised sale unit which better suits their needs and circumstances
while making better use of public housing resources.

Managing Properties with a Social Orientation

Apart from large-scale redevelopment projects, we have dedicated
ample resources to conducting maintenance and improvement works
across our rental estates. During the year, we have committed HK$113
million to carry out 70 major improvement works to upkeep our rental
estates. To improve the mobility and vertical access of rental estates,
five lift cars were installed in the second phase extension of lift services
at Ka Wai Chuen. We are now planning for the extension of lift services
at Kwun Tong Garden Estate and Lok Man Sun Chuen.

In September 2018, we rolled out two new rental policies. Under the
Rent Assistance Scheme, eligible tenants can apply for a 50% rent
reduction for a term of two years on a renewable basis. Since its launch,
491 applicants have benefitted from the scheme. Meanwhile, the
Well-off Tenants Policy (WTP) is stipulated with the purpose of ensuring
a more effective allocation of subsidised housing resources.
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Building Capacity for Achieving Success

With the rapid changing social, economic and technological
landscapes, we need to strengthen our capacity for keeping abreast of
times and align with the needs of the people. We will continue to

explore new solutions leveraging on the use of advanced technologies,

and connect with the public and stakeholders in achieving success.

Use of Innovative Technologies

The use of MiC in constructing the elderly block at Jat Min Chuen will
bring about the advantage of expediting construction works and
reducing construction waste. We will also pilot the use of Building
Information Modelling (BIM) in our redevelopment project at Ting On
Street in Kwun Tong. BIM, which generates three dimensional
representation of building data, has proved to be a powerful digital
platform for the planning, constructing and regulating of works.
Planners, architects and engineers across multiple agencies will have
easy access to layers of data and information, and this will enable the
planning and the building process to be more efficient and cost
effective. In other words, both tools and technologies will help to
improve our capacity to build better homes with more accurate
planning and execution of our developments.

Empowering the Workforce with Training

We attached great important to the performance, integrity and
professional ethics of our employees, who are the backbone of our

organisation. Capacity building training are conducted regularly for our

staff in a way to empower them for achieving the goal and mission of
the Housing Society. We also groomed our employees by imparting
training related to management and personnel matters. During the
year under review, a corporate-wide team building programme was
implemented to reinforce the team spirit of staff across all divisions.
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Fostering Ties with the Community and Stakeholders

To celebrate the 70" Anniversary of the Housing Society, we have rolled
out a series of celebratory events and activities to share our joy and
happiness with the stakeholders. We are delighted that the 70"
Anniversary Campaign clinched various local and regional awards for
our performance in image building and stakeholder communication.

An "Art in Estates” Mural Painting Programme was held in 2018 at our
housing estates, where residents were joined by members and staff of
the Housing Society in turning the walls of the estates into colourful art
murals. The murals at each of the estates were unique in the way that
the paintings reflected some of the area’s heritage. The community
project has been able to provide an opportunity and space for creative
expression while fostering a sense of community and local identity.

The inauguration of the first “Housing Society Exhibition Centre” in
December 2018 marked a historic moment for the Housing Society.
Showcasing a collection of historical exhibits and precious mementoes
relating to the historical developments of Hong Kong housing, the
Centre will continue to serve as a platform for Housing Society to
connect and interact with the community.
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CEQ'’s Review of Operations {748 & % ¥ 01 k8

Conclusion

The year 2018/19 proved to be a fruitful one, as we have been able to
achieve a majority of our annual targets while embarking on new
ventures. Our financial status remained healthy under prudent
management of our business and investments. Our commercial
portfolio generated an income of HK$901 million, and obtained an
investment gain of HK$853 million. Considering all our operating costs,
social projects expenditure and income from our domestic operation,
we recorded a net surplus of HK$1,085 million this year. Meanwhile, our
net asset value indicated a growth of 3% at HK$43.4 billion. Our steady
financial position will serve as a strong foundation for the sustainable
development of our businesses in view of the numerous projects ahead
of us.

Looking forward, we would remain strongly committed to creating
homes to meet the needs of our society, and would utilise our strength
and experience in mapping out a future with the homes we built and
created.

To conclude, | must express my deepest appreciation towards our
Chairman and to our Board members for their insightful and
professional guidance. | am also thankful to the Management and all of
our staff for their consistent dedication and commitment to achieving
excellence year after year.

Wong Kit-loong
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

21 June 2019
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Corporate Structure A& 7iE

SUPERVISORY BOARD

BB2

CHAIRMAN EX OFFICIO MEMBERS
*E ENRES
1 Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok sss,» 3 Mr Stanley Ying Yiu-hong css, s

FRIRGESF L sbs,up

Consultant, China Appointed Attesting Officer,
So, Lung & Associates Solicitors

EREERAN SIS AR PREIERATEA
(Chairman - from 6 September 2018;

Member - up to 6 September 2018)
(EFE-2018F9A6HE:
ZE-%2018%F9H6H)

VICE-CHAIRMAN
EIE 3

2 Prof Ling Kar-kan sas
EBENBUR s8s

Director, Jockey Club Design Institute for
Social Innovation,

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
ERBIASESSHGRAINRAIREE
(from 6 September 2018) (2018 F9 A6 H#E)
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Permanent Secretary for Transport and

Housing (Housing) cum Director of Housing,

HKSAR Government

BB RITTRIR B
BRLERERFINERER)
HEEEER

Mr Thomas Chan Chung-ching s
FRIAS % »

Director of Lands, HKSAR Government

EREIITREBR A LB EEER

ooooouooonnd

Mr Raymond Lee Kai-wing s

RIS »

Director of Planning, HKSAR Government

EFRRHTRERFREEZEE R

Dr Cheung Tin-cheung sss, sp

SRATHE L ses,p

Director of Buildings, HKSAR Government
EAFRTHERNETEER
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MEMBERS
8

7 Mr Au Choi-kai sss
ERER{E A s

Former Director of Buildings,
HKSAR Government
EERITHRBEFETENZER

8 Mr Chan Ka-kui sss,
PRIREQSEE s6s,p

Chairman, Construction Industry Council

BEXFEGER

9  Mr William Chau Chun-wing wmH,p
[EISEFR S mH e

CEO, Investment 21 Co Ltd
NELBRBBATEFHLRE

10

11

12

Mr Bosco Fung Chee-keung sss
IBRRABST A sas

Former Director of Planning,
HKSAR Government

EFRFNTRERFRIZFNER

Prof Eddie Hui Chi-man m+
STESSCAUR mH
Professor, Department of Building and Real Estate,

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
ERERTAPRANFESRHE

Ms Katherine Hung Siu-lin
gL
Independent Non-Executive Director,

CK Asset Holdings Limited
RTEXEBEERAFBIIHITESR

SUPERVISORY BOARD %58

EEEEBHE2018/19FEFR



Corporate Structure A& 7iE

SUPERVISORY BOARD

BB2

MEMBERS
8

13 Dr Lam Ching-choi sss, s
HIE BT EE4E sas e

Chief Executive Officer,

Haven of Hope Christian Service
HEEHBEENRSTHRAR

(from 6 September 2018) (2018 F 9 A 6 H#E)

14 Mr Wallace Lam Wing-ted
k@ dE

Co-Head of Global Banking, Hong Kong,
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

A LBELRITERAR

R EBRBEEE
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15 Mr Alex Lui Chun-wan
ERest

Former Professor, Department of Architecture,

The Chinese University of Hong Kong
BEBRXAREFRERHE

16 Mrs Agnes Mak Tang Pik-yee mH,
HEPBEL LT
Executive Director, iPrinciple Limited

iPrinciple Limited TTIER 425,
(from 6 September 2018) (2018 F9 A 6 HiE)

17

18

Mr Alvin Mak Wing-sum

Former Head of Markets and Banking,
CitiBank N.A. Hong Kong
EHEEBEBRAIEARTIS R
REIRITEBER

(from 6 September 2018) (2018 F9 A6 HAE)

Prof Kenneth Pang Tsan-wing sss
SIEBREUR s6s
Former Commissioner of Rating and Valuation,

HKSAR Government
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20

21

22

Mr lan Grant Robinson
EaiERE:
Managing Director,

Robinson Management Ltd

BEEBEEERAFTNTES

Dr Danny Wan Tak-fai
FraEELT
Managing Director,

Han'’s Real Estate (Hong Kong) Ltd
RIRHLEE (B7) AR R AMITRLE

Mr Wilson Wong Chiu-sang
TSRt

Former Senior General Manager and
Trustee Director of a Blue-Chip Bank

AIRITRRAEERRITERES

Mr Stanley Wong Yuen-fai sss, p
SiRMBI L sas,p
Non-Executive Director,

Urban Renewal Authority

mEREZBINTES

23 Mr Marco Wu Moon-hoi ass, sss
SRS S HE oss,s8s
Former Director of Buildings,
HKSAR Government
BEERBITHRBENETENER
(Member — from 6 September 2018;
Chairman — up to 6 September 2018)

(EE -2018%F9A6 AR
EF-F2018F9R6H)

24 Mr Robert Young Man-kim
eI E

Director, Ip Chi Shing Charitable Foundation
HEEREEESES

25 Mr Wong Kit-loong
SikEeNE

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director,

Hong Kong Housing Society

EREEGETRASFNTARS

SUPERVISORY BOARD k228 @)

Mr Lincoln Leong Kwok-kuen s»

REDESE »

Former Chief Executive Officer,

MTR Corporation Ltd
EBEBRER AR AT THAEE
(Vice-Chairman — up to 6 September 2018)
(BlE/E - £ 20185 9A6H)

Mr Victor Chan Hin-fu

FREGEE

Former General Manager — Mainland China
Property, MTR Corporation Ltd
BEMBEARATAELIE - REAYE
(up to 6 September 2018) (£ 2018 F 9 A6 H)

Ms Julia Lau Man-kwan
gIXBLT
Director, Urbantraces Limited

BHETERARNES
(up to 6 September 2018) (£ 2018 F 9 A6 H)

Dr Lau Kwok-yu

SIEBIEL »

Adjunct Professor, Department of Public Policy,
City University of Hong Kong
ERRTABRABRBREFOHR

(up to 6 September 2018) (£ 2018 F 9 A6 H)
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Corporate Structure #H & 2R1&

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

MTLES

CHAIRMAN
B

1 Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok sss,»
FRIRGESF L sbs,up

Consultant, China Appointed Attesting Officer,
So, Lung & Associates Solicitors

ERERAD BISPIRERI AT - FEIZFERGEA
(from 6 September 2018) (2018 ©F 9 A 6 HiR )

VICE-CHAIRMAN
I E 3

2 Prof Ling Kar-kan sss
ERENBUR s8s

Director, Jockey Club Design Institute for
Social Innovation,

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
ERBETREEFSH AR KA
(Vice-Chairman - from 6 September 2018;
Member - up to 6 September 2018)

(BIESF - 20185 9 A6 AL
Z8-E2018F9H6H)
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FERBRRAE o8s,

Permanent Secretary for Transport and
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BRLERERFINERER)
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Mr Victor Chan Hin-fu
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Mr Desmond Chan Kwok-Kit
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AlA Investment Management HK Limited
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Ir Edgar Kwan Chi-ping sss, s
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Ms Julia Lau Man-kwan
2B+

Director, Urbantraces Limited
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Sr Serena Lau Sze-wan s
SU5H38RIS6M

Managing Director, RHL International Ltd
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Mr Timothy Ma Kam-wah wmH,s»
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Founding Executive Director,
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10 Mr Wilfred Wong Kam-pui s
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Founder & Managing Director,
Resolutions HR & Business Consultancy Co Ltd
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11 Sr Prof Wong Bay
BHrBIRAISED
Director, Hong Kong Green Building Council
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12 Mr Wong Kit-loong
SffaekE
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director,

Hong Kong Housing Society
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Former Chief Executive Officer,
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Chief Executive Officer,
Haven of Hope Christian Service
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Corporate Structure £ @i 2Ri#

OTHER COMMITTEES

HihZ &S

NOMINATING COMMITTEE

RELEE

Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok sss, e (Chairman)

FRIRGE ST HE sps o (xR)
(from 6 September 2018) (2018 E9 A6 HAE)

Mr Stanley Ying Yiu-hong 68, Ex Officio Member)

[ERER A 6o p(#AZE)

Mr Chan Ka-kui sgs,p
PREIRED S A sas e

Mr Lincoln Leong Kwok-kuen Je

REAMESE »

Prof Ling Kar-kan sas
EREIE

(from 6 September 2018) (2018 E9 A6 HAE)

Prof Kenneth Pang Tsan-wing sss
FA T3

SEBRHUR s

Mr Marco Wu Moon-hoi css, sss

SR8 St A s, sas

(Member - from 6 September 2018;
Chairman - up to 6 September 2018)
(RE -2018%F9A6HE:
FE-E2018%F9A6H)

Mr Wong Kit-loong
BftEekE

Mr Yeung Ka-sing css, m8e,

i 2R B e GBS, msE,
(up to 6 September 2018) (£ 2018 9A6H)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
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Mr Alvin Mak Wing-sum (Chairman)
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(Chairman - from 6 September 2018;
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Mr Chan Bing-woon sss, mst, P

PRIA KR S & sas mae, sp

Mr Brian Chau
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Mr Simon Cheung
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Mr Dick Kwok Ngok-chung
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Mr Joseph Lee Chin-wai
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Dr Tony Leung Ka-tung
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Ms Anita Leung Ping-fun
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Dr Isaac Ng Ka-chui
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Mr Kyran Sze mH
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Miss Annie Tam Kam-lan ass,p
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(from 6 September 2018) (2018 79 A 6 A#E)

Mr Nicholas Tan Tsung-yuan
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Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok sss, e (Chairman)
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(up to 6 September 2018) (£ 201849 A6 H)

Mr Sunny Lee Wai-kwong
TEY L,

(up to 6 September 2018) (£ 20189 B 6 H)

Mr Wilson Wong Chiu-sang
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Mr Henry Yap Fat-suan
RS E
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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Ir Edgar Kwan Chi-ping ss, e (Chairman)
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Mr Patrick Lau Lai-chiu sas
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Mr Timothy Ma Kam-wah m, s»
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Mr Alvin Mak Wing-sum
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Mr James Siu Kai-lau
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SRk d »

Mr Robert Young Man-kim
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SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON
ELDERLY HOUSING
REBERIZES

Mr Timothy Ma Kam-wah wmH, Jp (Chairman)
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Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok sgs, Jp (Ex Officio Member)
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Dr Lau Kwok-yu s
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Dr Danny Wan Tak-fai
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Mr Henry Yap Fat-suan
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Mr Robert Young Man-kim
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(from 20 September 2018) (2018 4 9 5 20 H#E)

Mr Marco Wu Moon-hoi 6ss, 85 (Ex Officio Member)
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Mrs Cecilia Lee Yip Wai-kay &ss, mse
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(up to 6 September 2018) (£ 20189 A6 H)

Dr Lawrence Li Kwok-chang s
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(up to 6 September 2018) (£ 20189 B 6 H)

Mr Philip Liao Yi-kang
BER%E

(up to 6 September 2018) (£ 20189 A6 H)
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Mr Desmond Chan Kwok-kit (chairman)
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Mr Wallace Lam Wing-ted
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Mr Stuart Hamilton Leckie ose
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Mr Martin Leung Oh-man
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Mr Alvin Mak Wing-sum
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Mr Martin K Matsui
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Mr Stanley Wong Yuen-fai sss, s
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Ms Linda Kwo Lai-ming
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(up to 6 September 2018) (£ 20189 H6H)

Mr Kevin Kwong Ka-wing
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Mr Conrad Fung Kwok-keung
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Mr Lam Sze-chuen
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Ms Julia Lau Man-kwan
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Mr Philip Lo Kai-wah
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(from 20 September 2018) (2018 F 9 B 20 H#8)

Mr Felix Lok Man-fai
B8 B

Mr Kyran Sze wmH
SR BR e A mm

Mr Peter Mok Kwok-woo
SEf kS

(up to 6 September 2018) (£ 20189 A6 H)

Mr Yue Chi-hang sss
RIS sas

(up to 6 September 2018) (Z 20189 A6 H)

Prof James Lau Chi-wang sss,
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(non-Housing Society Member)
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(up to 6 September 2018) (Z 2018 F 9 A6 H)
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Corporate Structure £ @i 2Ri#

OTHER MEMBERS

Hith R &

Sir David Akers-Jones kst cma, GBM, Jp
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Mr Payson Cha Mou-sing »
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Mr Stephen Chan Chit-kwai sss, s
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Mr William Chan Fu-keung sss
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Mr Chan Kwong-choi
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Mr James Chan Yum-min

FRER GO

Deputy Chief Executive Officer, HKHS
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Mr Chau Cham-son oge
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Mr Brian Chau ™!
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Dr Cheng Hon-kwan ass, ost, P
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Mr Edward Cheng Wai-sun gss,
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Admitted as Housing Society Member on

24 January 2019
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Committee on Planning, Design and
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Resigned as Housing Society Member on
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Members residing overseas

Retired as a Member of the Special Committee
on Investment on 6 September 2018

Appointed and retired as a Member of
the Special Committee on Investment on
20 September 2018 and 19 February 2019
respectively

Admitted as Housing Society Member on

21 February 2019 and appointed as a Member of
the Special Committee on Planning, Design and
Construction on 21 March 2019

Admitted as Housing Society Member on

8 November 2018

Retired as a Member of the Audit Committee on
6 September 2018

Retired as a Member of the Special Committee
on Elderly Housing on 6 September 2018
Elected as a Member of the Supervisory Board
on 6 September 2018

Retired as a Member of the Task Force on Design
and Construction on 6 September 2018
Appointed as a Member of the Remuneration
Committee on 20 September 2018

Appointed as a Member of the Audit Committee
on 6 September 2018 and a Member of the
Special Committee on Elderly Housing on

20 September 2018

Admitted as Housing Society Member on

9 May 2019

Retired as a Member of the Nominating
Committee on 6 September 2018

2018596 HEAEZAFEREZERKE
20191 A24 B REHZEE

2018 £ 9 A 20 ARZAHEARERRBETR
BRIZEgKE

2018410 A 15 BFEEHES
EREINOEE

20189 A6 HRARERFIEEGHKE

DRIF 201849 A20 AR 201942 A19H
EEZERRAREFHANEEGKE
201942 21 BRAEHEE R 2019F3 A 218
EZEERRERAREETRENIZEERE
2018411 ABHRREMEE
20184F9 A6 BRAFIZEZEGKE
20189 A6 ARARERERFIEEZKE
2018 F9 A6 AERESEEKE

201849 A 6 AREEERTRBETR
HEPNHEKE

2018 F 920 A Z T HMZER G E

2018F 96 HRZEERZEGKER
2018F 920 A ZEREEEFFIZEGHKE

201945 A9 AEHEE
201849 A6 HIRERZEZREKER

EEEEBHE2018/19FEFR



asat30June 2019 M=—ZB—NEXA=+H g

BA(Hons) BA(AS), B.BIdg, FRICS, FHKIS, MCIArb, AAIQS, RPS(QS)
Deputy Chief Executive Officer Director (Projects)
BITTEAEEL wEs (TR%E)
BSc(Hons), RPHM, FRICS, FCIH, FHKIH BSc(Surv)(Hons), MHKIS, MRICS, RPS(GP)
Director (Property Management) Director (Development and Marketing)
BE (WEER) BE (MEERETSER)
B(BA), RPHIM, MRICS, MCIH, MHKIH
Chief Executive Officer BSc(Econ), ACA, CPA(Practising), EMBA(CUHK) BSc(Hons), MSocSc(Urban Studies), MHousMan,

) ) - EMBA(CUHK), PDIpREA(Dist), RPHM, FCIH, MHKIH, MHIREA
and Executive Director Director (Corporate Assistant Director
AR@RFERTARE Planning and Finance)

B (%48 BT BHE) (Property Management)

BERE (MEEE)

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2018/19



SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

SREIRAS

asat30June 2019 R=ZZE—HhEXA=1A

Ms Carrie Chan Hou-Chi
FRISRIZ T

General Manager (Project Management)

iR (JRRER)

Mr Chan Wai-ming
[RIZISS

General Manager (Maintenance)

B (MERE)

Ms Kathleen Chan Yuk-wan
REELT

Head of Corporate Planning and
Financial Control

CERENPBEETE

Dr Cheung Moon-wah
SRImEE T
General Manager (Elderly Services)

e (RERS)

Mr Chum Hon-sun
BigEmkE

General Manager (Project Management)
sl CEEER)

Ms Rita Chung Fung-hing
sB R0zt

General Manager (Contract Management)

B (BHER)

Ms May Kan Shiu-mui
(LA 3
Head of Corporate Secretarial and

Administrative Services

EMERTHEFEE

Mr Oliver Law Lin-fat

General Manager (Planning and Development)

B (MERIRER)

Ms Pamela Leung Yi-lin
RigEEL
Head of Corporate Communications

ERENEE

Mr Bobby Li Hoi-yuen
SHTEE

Head of Quality Audit
mEERZEE

Mr Alan Liu Chi-lun
Head of Treasury

EBTE

Ms Winnie Lok Yuen-ting
PR T

General Manager (Contract Management)
B (BHER)

Mr Alfred Louie Chung-wai
BRENRE

Head of Internal Audit
NEFEZEE

Mr Peter Or Oi-bon
BBt

General Manager (Sales and Marketing)

BIER (HERTHES)

Mrs Ada Share lu Yuk-sum
AELNTT

General Manager (Property Management)

KR (MEER)

Mr Darron Sun Kin-kwok
FiRE%E

Head of Information Technology

BB EE

Mr Patrick Tsang Tak-ming
BiEOAKE

General Manager (Planning and Development)

B (MERIRER)

Mr Byron Tse Ka-yiu
FN0BSAE

General Manager (Marketing)
wasE (M5 EB)

Mr Wan Yiu-keung

PhEcascE

General Manager (Project Management)
wrerE CEEER)

Mr Samuel Yan Kwok-wai

ERfRSEE

Head of Human Resources

ANEREE

EEEEBHE2018/19FEFR



Business Overview
F IR E

MEETING

The Needs of an Ageing Population

405 & =
Fzzj EE e AOPTE
Y I\







Business Overview # ¥t &

MEETING THE NEEDS OF AN AGEING POPULATION

RARRSEER AOIFRFR

Age Profile of Housing Society Tenants
BhERFER N

No. of Tenants as at 31 March 2019
BRAZ HE-Z-NAF=A=+—HIt

Age
FiR
mm 0-19 (9%)

83,097

m 20-39 (22%)
Total 281

H >60 (39%)

Population ageing is a global phenomenon and Hong Kong is no
exception. According to data published by the Hong Kong Census and
Statistics Department, the elderly population will increase at a much
faster pace in the future, with the proportion of elderly citizens aged 65
or over projected to grow from 17% in 2016 to 31% in 2036. By 2040,
about one in every three Hong Kong people will be an elderly person. It
is imperative that Hong Kong has to prepare for the economic and
social challenges posed by this demographic change.

2019 marks the 20™ anniversary of our efforts in elderly housing
development. Since the 1990s, the Housing Society has embarked on a
variety of pilot housing projects and schemes targeting elderly citizens
in different socio-economic groups, providing homes with elderly-
friendly features and assisting them to “age in place”.

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2018/19
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MEETING THE NEEDS OF AN AGEING POPULATION RaRE%8 ADFRTH

Senior Citizen Residences Scheme

The Senior Citizen Residences Scheme (SEN) is a subsidised residential
project for the middle-income elderly citizens, who are provided with a
lifetime tenancy to occupy the SEN unit designed with elderly-friendly
features. The Housing Society is now planning the third project at Lee
Kung Street, Hung Hom, which will add to our existing SEN portfolio
that comprises Jolly Place in Tseung Kwan O and Cheerful Court in
Jordan Valley.

The new project will feature a range of facilities like reading room, gym
and outdoor garden areas, spaces that better suit the needs and
purpose of the tenants. The design of the new project has been
enhanced and optimised by incorporating experience and feedback
from the existing tenants of SEN. Foundation works for this new Lee
Kung Street project started in late 2018, providing a total of 312 units
upon estimated completion by 2022.

[ EEsEs
Every HK$1 invested
in SEN, a Social Return
on Investment (SROI) of
HK$5.07 generated
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The two existing SEN projects have come with social and healthcare

provision as well as on-site Residential Care Home for the Elderly (RCHE).

These are housing projects that carry a social impact. Results from a
survey conducted in partnership with The University of Hong Kong's
Sau Po Centre on Ageing reveal that tenants living under the project
exhibit better outcomes in multiple aspects compared to the control
group in terms of quality of life, self-rated health, cognitive status as
well as the use of emergency and hospital services. The positive data
reflects that the comprehensive provision provided have considerably
improved the residents’ quality of life and helped support independent
living among seniors in an effective way.

As of March 2019, the RCHE occupancy rates at Jolly Place and Cheerful
Court were 87% and 95% respectively.

Ageing-In-Place Scheme

The Chief Executive’s 2018 Policy Address has emphasised the
importance of continuing support for the concept of “ageing in place”
among the elderly population. The Housing Society has striven to reach
this goal by assisting the elderly to live in an age-friendly environment
where they are able to lead a private and independent life.

Under the Ageing-In-Place Scheme (AIP Scheme), senior citizens will
have ready access to health care services and social support on site or
in the residential vicinity. These support would help them refrain from
institutional care and prolong their independent living.

Firstintroduced at Cho Yiu Chuen in 2012, the AIP Scheme is now
implemented across all of our 20 rental estates. Through the
partnership with government departments, non-profit organisations,

HS collaborates with
195 6

280"

organisations to bring synergy
effects in serving elderly tenants
KBS EAREHPRMERE

BIERRME
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MEETING THE NEEDS OF AN AGEING POPULATION RaRE%8 ADFRTH

HENE \é\ﬁﬁ

Every HK$1 invested in AIP
Scheme, a Social Return

on Investment (SROI) of
HK$4.8 generated

BER] ERZEE
g?ﬂ;k
Mt EEREER

i

TEEINEN\T

healthcare service providers and academics, and with the backing of
our counterparts and volunteers, various services are provided to our
elderly tenants including home assessments and modifications, health
check and management, as well as social care. And half of our rental
estates consist of elderly lounges and support centres where social
activities and educational talks are held to engage the seniors.

To provide further social support for the elderly tenants, home visits by
estate-based workers are carried out to identify and assess the needs of
the elderly residents, and teams of AIP staff are dispatched to provide
on-site services.

Since the Scheme was first launched, we have served a total of around
28,000 residents, of which 2,178 residents are first-time participants in
2018/19. With our pledge to continuously improve our services for the
elderly, 820 home modification assessments were carried out in the
past year and 701 units of home modification and remodelling have
been implemented.

More Elderly Housing to Meet the Needs

The Housing Society is always looking for new solutions to increase the
supply of elderly housing in face of limited land resources in Hong
Kong. We have recently proposed the first elderly housing project using
“Modular Integrated Construction” (MiC) at Jat Min Chuen by utilising
the unused plot ratio to build a 10-storey residential block with around
70 elderly-friendly rental flats.

a
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Flat For Flat Pilot Scheme for Elderly Owners

Echoing the announcement of the “Flat for Flat Pilot Scheme for Elderly
Owners” in the Chief Executive's 2018 Policy Address, we have been
working closely with the Transport and Housing Bureau on the
operational framework. Under the Pilot Scheme, owners aged 60 or
above who have owned a subsidised sale unit for at least 10 years may
choose to sell the original flat and then purchase a smaller flat with
premium unpaid in the Secondary Market. The Pilot Scheme does not
only offer an alternative to eligible elderly owners to move to a smaller
flat which better suits their needs and circumstances, but also helps
encourage the circulation of subsidised sale developments and more
effective use of existing housing resources. We hope to launch the Pilot
Scheme in the second half of 2019 after obtaining policy support and
approval.

The Tanner Hill

Piloted in 2015, The Tanner Hill in North Point is a non-subsidised
project for senior citizens with better financial means. The upscale
elderly project provides an additional option for the elderly amidst the
absence of choices related to high-quality elderly housing integrated
with a wide range of care and supporting services.
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The Tanner Hill comprises three residential towers with a total of 588
residential units. It includes an elderly facility named Joyous Circle,
which consists of an RCHE, a Day Care and Training Centre, and a
Rehabilitation Centre, offering one-stop services ranging from care for
seniors living independently to services for those in need of nursing
home care.

With the well-being and needs of the seniors in mind, the residential
units are specifically designed with age-friendly features such as
widened entrances without door sills, larger electricity buttons and
switches, and emergency alarm systems. An Integrated Care Link
System, which consists of an emergency call response system, health
data collection and monitoring system and no-motion response
detection sensor, is in place to keep track of the tenants’ daily habits
and health conditions. Residential tenants, while living independently
in their own apartments, are visited by estate-based social workers who
helped to identify issues, if any, and assisted the elderly to connect with
the wider community for support.

For those who need more intensive care, they may turn to the services
of RCHE, which features 117 beds and 24-hour on-call nursing service.
In 2018/19, two floors with 78 beds were opened for service, the
average occupancy rate doubled over the past year, at a rate of 85% out
of 78 beds as of March 2019. Also within the premises of the Joyous
Circle is the Day Care and Training Centre, which provides a range of
day care services and cognitive training developed according to the
needs and conditions of the elderly. The Rehabilitation Centre aims to
maximise independent living among seniors with on-site occupational
therapists recommending rehabilitation programme suitable for
individual clients. These skilled-care services provided in the Joyous
Circle are backed by a team of 115 trained professional staff.

Ancillary facilities of the Tanner Hill include the Chinese Medicine
Specialty Clinic of the Hong Kong Baptist University, the Healthcare
Family Medicine and Primary Care Centre and Senior Citizen Wellness
Centre managed by the Hong Kong Sanitorium & Hospital. These clinics
and centres on the same site provide healthcare and elderly services
within easy reach of both the elderly residents and members of the
community.
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Overall tenant satisfaction rate for
The Tanner Hill services reaches

HEHE &5 RS E

9 byl

The seniors at The Tanner Hill can enjoy a relaxing lifestyle with the
diverse range of amenities, activities and services provided there. The
Joyous Hub at The Tanner Hill features a restaurant specialising in
Chinese cuisine, a western style café, an indoor heated swimming pool
and gym, which is open to tenants and registered members. The
number of registered members totalled over 2,000 as of March 2019.

To promote healthy ageing and healthy lifestyle choices among the
elderly residents, they are provided with a series of educational talks
and lifestyle programme. In 2018/19, 146 tenants attended the talks. As
part of the "Healthy Joyous Lifestyle Programme”, nutritionist-approved
meal services are available to resident subscribers at affordable prices.

Since its launch, The Tanner Hill has received an overwhelming
response from the society. All residential units in The Tanner Hill were
leased and fully occupied as of March 2019, with a waitlist of over 1,300
applicants. A total of 117 tenancies have been converted from a short-
term lease to a long-term lease, with nearly 70% of the residents now
on long leases. The utilisation rate of the Day Care and Training Centre
reached 59% as of March 2019, while the Rehabilitation Centre, with
therapists on site to deliver services and treatments, continued to
operate at full utilisation.

The Tanner Hill project has also become the focus of public attention
and interest, despite the fact that the elderly housing projects created
by the Housing Society over the years were mainly for seniors in the
low and middle income brackets. The success of the project proves that
there is a demand in the elderly housing market and that elderly
housing project is financially viable in the long run.
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MEETING THE NEEDS OF AN AGEING POPULATION FARBE%E ADFRE

To share the knowledge and experience concerning the development
of The Tanner Hill, a special publication on the project was launched
during the year as part of our ongoing campaign to promote “ageing in
place”. We hope The Tanner Hill would serve as an exemplar
showcasing quality elderly housing for the industry and the public.

Community Resources to Foster Ageing in Place

With an ageing population and an increase in general life expectancy,
how to take care of the elderly has become a challenging issue. To raise
public awareness about the issue of ageing and enhance
understanding of the needs of the elderly, the Housing Society has
developed resources to promote the concept of “ageing in place”.

The Elderly Resources Centre (ERC) at Prosperous Garden in Yau Ma Tei
was initially launched in 2005 with the aim to showcase the concept of
“age-friendly home” through education, health screening and
professional consultation. During the year, the centre has received a
total of 20,581 visitors, and its educational talks, training programmes
and activities have engaged 547 participants, including social workers
and healthcare professionals.

The MIND-Friendly Home Exploration Centre, located in the ERC, was
opened in late 2017. It exhibited features of dementia-friendly home

design, and served the goal of raising public awareness of the disease
by receiving 7,416 visitors during the year.
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SERVING OUR RESIDENTS WITH EXCELLENCE

sINRFBRBER

Population of Properties Managed by the Housing Society

EHEEMARNEFAD

as at 31 March 2019
HE-T-NAF=A=+—ALt

mm 78,531 (59.6%)

Rental Estate

I 4,566 (3.5%)
Rural Public Housing

1,275 (1.0%)
Urban Renewal Projects

HAEELP BRAFKEE mEEZEA
131,692 B 17,905 (13.6%) m 2,222 (1.7%) "
Total @8 Flat-For-Sale Scheme Subsidised Sale Flats Project Quality Elderly Housing Project

EEHEE APHEFERR BEREFERA

I 14,344 (10.9%) Il 2,843 (2.1%) Il 655 (0.5%)
Sandwich Class Housing Scheme Urban Improvement Scheme Senior Citizen Residences Scheme
SO EEE A e e At [RERESREEE

Em 5,928 (4.5%) I 2,402 (1.8%)

Tenants Purchase Scheme
HEBHRERE

Full Market Value Development
TE#RIER

The Housing Society is dedicated to providing our residents with
quality flats and maintaining a safe living environment for our tenants.

In 2018/19, the Housing Society has a portfolio of 20 rental estates
comprising a total of 32,640 units with around 83,000 tenants under its
management. We have also managed 25 privately owned properties
and the estates of the Tenants Purchase Scheme of the Hong Kong
Housing Authority, accounting for 19,789 flats and 4,826 units
respectively.

As half of our rental estates are erected 40 to 50 years ago, the
maintenance and redevelopment of our aged building stock remain to
be our primary focus. And taken into account the increasing percentage
of elderly tenants in our rental estates, with nearly 40% of residents
aged over 60, we need to step up efforts in enhancing lift services at
our rental estates to facilitate vertical accessibility.

To promote the building of a cross-generational community in our
estates, spaces are designated to serve the purposes of different age
groups while community activities are periodically organised to
cultivate a sense of harmonious co-living and co-existence.
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SERVING OUR RESIDENTS WITH EXCELLENCE ®IM\RIFER

Rent and Rental Policy

As a not-for-profit organisation operating on self-financing principles,
the operating accounts of the rental estates managed by the Housing
Society are independent of other businesses.

To render assistance to tenants encountering short-term financial
difficulties, the Rent Assistance Scheme was launched in September
2018. Tenants meeting the income and asset criteria are eligible to
apply for a 50% rent reduction for a period of two years on a renewal
basis.

To ensure fair allocation of public housing resources, the Housing
Society introduced a new Well-off Tenants Policy (WTP) in September
2018, which is applicable to new tenants as well as cases where tenancy
is transferred to a non-spousal family member of tenants. In other
words, these tenancy holders are subject to means assessments and
requirements relating to the WTP. Since its introduction, about 160 new
tenancy agreements were entered with the WTP terms incorporated.
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Improvement Works on Rental Estates (Expenditure)

LRIk ELR (2H)

(Cumulative) HKS million as at 31 March 2019

(REhEBEET HE-T-AF=A=t+—H1t
3,000—
2970 mm 1,428 (48%)
2,500 — Estate Rehabilitation and Renovation
EREEREH
2000- 622 (21%)
_ Power Upgrading
1,500 T Tt
1,000 B 343 (12%)
Barrier-free Access Improvement
200= TR
89
0 Year
03/04 18/19 13

Maintenance, Redevelopment and Provision of
New Rental Units

The Housing Society is dedicated to providing safe, accessible and
quality housing units for our tenants. In the past year, in tandem with
the redevelopment of individual estates, we continued to monitor and
conduct maintenance at various estates and identified areas where
improvements can be made.

In 2018/19, we completed the second phase of the lift replacement
project at Ka Wai Chuen in Hung Hom with the installation of another
five lift cars, to improve the mobility and accessibility of tenants. The
entire project, commenced in May 2017, involved the replacement of
15 lifts for accessing the two uppermost floors of the five rental blocks
at Ka Wai Chuen. Meanwhile, we are also studying the extension and
addition of lift services at individual floors in Kwun Tong Garden Estate
and Lok Man Sun Chuen respectively.

The Housing Society also participated in the Voluntary Building
Assessment Scheme (VBAS) programme, which encourages owners to
properly upkeep the maintenance of their properties. During the year,
VBAS assessment has been carried out on 13 blocks in three estates.
Meanwhile, repair works have been carried out on 40 blocks in four
estates after assessments were undertaken in the preceding year.
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SERVING OUR RESIDENTS WITH EXCELLENCE ®IM\RIFER

Fostering Closer Community Ties

The Housing Society Community (HSC), established in 2003, aims to
foster tighter community bonds by organising recreational activities,
events and services for our residents. We promote closer community
ties between our tenants through the support and engagement of the
wider community, with a view to promoting a more harmonious and
fulfilling living experience.

In the past year, HSC focused on supporting the AIP Scheme in enabling
greater independence of our elderly tenants. In line with the concept of
“ageing in place”, a number of amenities dedicated to our older
residents are provided, including elderly lounges at nine of our estates,
which are specifically designed for the purpose of promoting stronger
social ties among neighbours, maintaining and building their social
network, as well as cultivating positive mental and physical health.

The HSC has organised various kinds of activities and events ranging
from Creative Mural Painting, Chinese New Year Gathering, Tree
Planting Day, Elderly Game Day and Sports Adventure, to Boccia class,
which received overwhelming feedback from our tenants.

In 2018/19, the HSC organised
900 community activities
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Caring for Our Tenants

We take pride in ensuring that our tenants are well taken care of
beyond having a housing unit to live in. Through the provision of social
activities and recreational services, we hope to create a living
environment conducive to a better quality of life.

Over the past few years, we have been offering programmes and
initiatives that specifically catered to their needs, such as the AIP
Scheme. At the other end of the targeted age spectrum, the Housing
Society Community Scholarship programme was set up in 2014 to
encourage the pursuit of academic excellence among the younger
generation in our estates. Eligible students are awarded HK$5,000
scholarships or HK$10,000 scholarships for their outstanding
achievements in the Hong Kong Diploma of Secondary Education
Examination. In 2018/19, a total of HK$95,000 in scholarships had been
awarded to 15 students.

Customer satisfaction is always a top priority on the agenda of the
Housing Society. We are dedicated to listening to the feedback from

our residents on our services and improving the services offered to our
tenants. In 2018/19, a customer satisfaction survey has been conducted
across 36 estates, including rental and managed properties.
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Results of the study show that a majority of the respondents are
pleased with the services rendered by the Housing Society, with the
overall satisfaction rate stood at 85%. They were generally satisfied with
the various aspects of property management operated by the Housing
Society, including staff performance, security, repair and maintenance,
and environmental protection.

Commercial Property Management

Satisfying the needs of our tenants is of foremost importance when
selecting commercial tenants. At present, a majority of our commercial
spaces are occupied by local neighbourhood shops (74%) and the rest
operated by the welfare sector (26%). Premises are rented to
commercial tenants at full market rates while spaces are leased to social
service providers at concessionary rates. The average occupancy rate
for the retail spaces is over 97% during the review period.

To create a better business environment for our commercial tenants
and improve the shopping experience of our residents, renovations and
enhancements to the design of the shopping centres are undertaken
from time to time.

In October 2018, renovations for the first floor arcade of Jubilant Plaza
were completed. The reconfiguration of layout has optimised space
allocation to offer more choices of restaurants to our shoppers, thus
improving the dining experience for people in the estate and the
nearby community.
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BUILDING QUALITY HOMES
RIFZBREEA

Units of Projects Developed
2R REBEBNEMNSE

No. of Units as at 31 March 2019
vt =] HE-ZT-NF=A=+—ALt
Il 34,982 (51.4%) I 3,146 (4.6%) I 588 (0.9%)
Rental Estate Full Market Value Development Quality Elderly Housing Project
HHAETP MmEEREAR BEREFEER
68,049 m 10,360 (15.2%) W 1,531 (2.2%) i
Total @) Flat-For-Sale Scheme Urban Renewal Project Senior Citizen Residences Scheme
FEBEE mRERIER [REREL] (TRE
Il 8,920 (13.1%) Il 1,338 (2.0%)
Sandwich Class Housing Scheme Rural Public Housing
ROEEEEE BRAKEE
Il 5,620 (8.3%) I 988 (1.5%)
Urban Improvement Scheme Subsidised Sale Flats Project
M=t E EPHEREER

The Housing Society is committed to providing quality housing with
practicality, functionality and safety, with the objective to create a
liveable and pleasant environment for our tenants and homebuyers.

We have been all along working closely with the Government to
explore viable solutions to address the pressing housing needs of Hong
Kong people. Last year, the Government set out a new policy after
reviewing the land premium arrangement for our subsidised housing
projects, under which future sites for rental housing will be granted at a
nominal land premium of HK$1,000 and sites for Subsidised Sale Flats
(SSF) projects at one-third of the full market value. The initiative will
help to lift the financial burden on the Housing Society and make its
operations more sustainable.

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2018/19

EHBARHVAFTE BERAMXLZEW
BERE REPREREEZEEMNLRE

B -

B EBERARFEZEE THER
AT RNBRBEABYNEERE -
F BNSEHNEDFEEROMER
PRER RS - AORTE AR LA 1,000/ TTREL
AEHfE TFEHEZLBEEE - K+ &
MEMEN =D —(FREEHHERE -
MBREBBREE BN B & RER
BEMAREM



Subsidised Sale Flats

The Housing Society has been working in partnership with the
Government to raise the supply of affordable housing in Hong Kong,
particularly in the area of SSF. During the fiscal year under review, new
sites have been allocated to the Housing Society for SSF developments,
and these projects have been making good progress and are on
schedule.

New Project Sites at Anderson Road Quarry and Kai Tak

In mid-2018, the Chief Executive announced that nine private housing
sites would be reallocated for public housing. Upon the Government's
invitation, the Housing Society has agreed to take up a site at Kai Tak
and three others at Anderson Road Quarry for SSF developments, which
are capable of supplying 4,600 new SSF units. Subsequent to the
confirmation of these project sites, the Housing Society has been
working hand in hand with respective government departments to
coordinate the land grant process as well as to discuss the planning
issues where necessary. It is anticipated that construction for the first
site at Anderson Road Quarry will be commenced in 2020, and the
projects are expected to complete between 2025 and 2026, with an
estimated five-year completion timeline for each of these sites.
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Fanling Jockey Club Road

In 2018/19, an application for the rezoning of the site at Fanling Jockey
Club Road was submitted to the Town Planning Board subsequent to
consultation with the District Council. Following the approval granted
in March 2019, a land grant application was filed. The construction is
expected to commence in 2021 and completion is planned for 2024,
yielding around 650 SSF units.

Greenhill Villa

The Greenhill Villa in Sha Tin, the second SSF project after Greenview

Villain Tsing Vi, is close to completion. The project will provide 1,020

units and homebuyers are expected to move in by the first quarter of
2020.
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Terrace Concerto and Mount Verdant

Terrace Concerto in Tuen Mun and Mount Verdant in Tseung Kwan O
were launched for pre-sale in November 2017. These projects, offering
a total of 620 one- to three-bedroom residential flats, were open for
application from November 2017 to eligible applicants. When the flat
selection took place in February 2018, all units were sold within a
matter of days.

The construction of both projects is in good progress, with topping out
of the buildings took place during the second half of 2018. They are
expected to complete in 2019 and 2020 respectively, and the units are
expected to be handed over to homebuyers by 2020.
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Redeveloping Our Rental Estates

Currently, our rental estate portfolio includes 20 estates with a total of
32,640 flats. Of these, ten estates comprising 19,100 flats — or about
60% of our residential rental building stock — are more than 40 years
old. To maintain and improve the quality of living for our tenants,
redevelopment of estates has been one of our core focus areas in
recent years. Identifying suitable sites for building decanting estates,
however, poses a challenge for our redevelopment plan.

During the year under review, the Housing Society has been allocated a
site in Kai Tak to kickstart the redevelopment of Chun Seen Mei Chuen.
The Housing Society can then make use of the vacated site of Chun
Seen Mei Chuen to set off the redevelopment of Lok Man Sun Chuen.

Ming Wah Dai Ha

Located in Shau Kei Wan, Ming Wah Dai Ha is a rental estate built over
50 years ago. Itis currently undergoing redevelopment in three phases.
For Phase I, foundation works for two new towers had been completed
and superstructure works were in progress. A total of 966 flats will be
provided for rehousing purposes, which will help facilitate the second
phase of redevelopment. We will continue to keep track of the progress
towards its completion in 2020.

The Town Planning Board gave approval to the revised Master Layout
Plan for Phases Il and Il in January 2019. The scale in Phase Il will be
expanded to expedite the decanting process for Phase Ill. The lease
modification application is currently underway.

To meet the aspirations of home ownership and the needs of ageing
population, the entire project will offer a mix of 2,561 rental flats, 750
SSF units and 608 SEN units, totalling 3,919 flats, which is 700 units
more than the existing provision. The entire development is expected
to complete by 2032.
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A Kwun Tong Garden Estate
BRIEEAE
<« Ming Wah Dai Ha
BRERE
» Yu Kwong Chuen
A

Yue Kwong Chuen

Yue Kwong Chuen, located in Aberdeen and built in the 1960s, will be
redeveloped in two phases. A rezoning application for the
development of a rehousing estate at Shek Pai Wan Road, in the vicinity
of Yue Kwong Chuen, has been filed and approved by the Town
Planning Board in August 2018. The land grant process related to the
project is now underway. Construction is expected to commence in
mid-2019 and complete in 2024, offering 600 flats for decanting of Yue
Kwong Chuen residents for Phase | redevelopment.

Yue Kwong Chuen has 1,144 rental flats at present. The two-phase
redevelopment for Yue Kwong Chuen is expected to complete by 2030
and 2035 respectively, providing a total of around 2,000 rental units and
SSF units.

Kwun Tong Garden Estate

Established in the 1960s, Kwun Tong Garden Estate Il is also under our
redevelopment plan. A decanting site at Ting On Street, opposite to the
existing estate, was identified for the purpose of rehousing. The
planning application has been approved and the land grant procedure
is in the pipeline. The construction is expected to commence in 2020
and complete in 2024, offering 380 rental units.

At the same time, a feasibility study for the redevelopment of the
original site of Kwun Tong Garden Estate Il will be conducted in 2019,
targeting around 5,000 new flats for rental units, SSF units and SEN units
after the redevelopment, which is a double compared to the old estate
of 2,352 rental flats.
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A Chun Seen Mei Chuen
BEXMN

Chun Seen Mei Chuen

The redevelopment of Chun Seen Mei Chuen is facilitated with a site at
Kai Tak Area offered by the Government. The land grant application for
the Kai Tak site has been submitted to the Lands Department, and the
construction is scheduled to begin in 2020 and expected to complete
in 2025, yielding 2,050 units.

Upon completion of the site in Kai Tak, Chun Seen Mei Chuen will be
redeveloped to facilitate the first phase of redevelopment of Lok Man
Sun Chuen.

Dedicated Rehousing Estate

In May 2018, measures have been announced by the Government to
enhance the compensation and rehousing arrangements for eligible
households affected by government’s development clearance exercises,
one of which is to offer a non-means-tested rehousing option for
eligible clearees in the form of rental and subsidised sale flats in DRE
developed and managed by the Housing Society, in addition to the
means-tested rehousing option offered by the Housing Authority.

We have been working in close partnership with the Government,
supporting the development of dedicated rehousing estates for
residents affected by Government’s development clearance exercises,
such as clearees of the New Development Areas project. Currently, we
are working on four DRE projects.
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P A Dedicated Rehousing
Estate will be built on
Pak Wo Road in Fanling.

HEEME K REER
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Pak Wo Road

The Pak Wo Road project in Fanling will provide around 510 public
rental flats, 700 SSF, and 260 SEN flats when completed. Ancillary

facilities will include two Residential Care Homes for the Elderly (RCHE),

as well as a shopping centre and public parking space. Works are now
in progress. The entire project is expected to be ready for population
intake in 2024.

Hung Shui Kiu

A preliminary master plan and implementation programme for the
Hung Shui Kiu DRE project were formulated at the invitation of the
Government for the Housing Society to participate in the housing
development at Hung Shui Kiu. The land grant application was
submitted in January 2019.

A three-phase construction plan was planned for this project, with
Phase | expected to be completed in 2024, providing around 2,100
rental and subsidised sale flats. Retail, governmental and community
facilities will also be provided.
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Kwu Tung North

The DRE project in Area 24 in Kwu Tung North was planned at the
invitation of the Government for rehousing affected households in the
Kwu Tung North development clearance exercise. The project will
provide around 2,500 rental and subsidised sale flats. Discussions with
the Government on the implementation plans are underway.

Kai Tak

The site in Area 1E Site 1 in Kai Tak with provision of 2,050 units was
planned at the invitation of the Government. About half of the units
would be reserved for the redevelopment of Chun Seen Mei Chuen and
the remaining units will serve as a DRE for rehousing eligible clearees
affected by government development projects or redevelopment
projects. The land grant application for the Kai Tak site has been
submitted to the Lands Department, and the construction is scheduled
to begin in 2020 and is expected to completed in 2025.

Transitional Housing Scheme

With a view to better utilising housing resources and improving the
living environment of people waiting for public rental housing, we have
launched the “T-Home" Scheme at Yue Kwong Chuen and “Letting
Scheme for Subsidised Sale Developments with Premium Unpaid” to
pave the way for more transitional housing for those in need.
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BUILDING QUALITY HOMES BIR2BSEFr

“T-Home” Project — Yue Kwong Chuen

Subsequent to the approval by the Town Planning Board of a rezoning
application for the development of a rehousing estate in Shek Pai Wan
Road near Yue Kwong Chuen, 217 small-sized vacant flats at Yue Kwong
Chuen pending redevelopment were refurbished to become the first
batch of units under the “T-Home" Transitional Housing Scheme in July
2018. The Scheme, which aims to create spaces for those on the waiting
list for public housing, was well received and resulted in 1,399
applications, of which most were from 2-person and 3-person families
(1,332), and a small number from Single Elderly Persons Priority Scheme
of the Hong Kong Housing Authority (28). Up till the end of March 2019,
150 families have moved in while the remaining tenants will move into
the flats in phases by May 2019.

“Letting Scheme for Subsidised Sale Developments with
Premium Unpaid”

In line with “The Chief Executive’s 2017 Policy Address” to provide
additional transitional housing for applicants waiting for public housing,
the “Letting Scheme for Subsidised Sale Developments with Premium
Unpaid” (Letting Scheme) was piloted in September 2018. Under the
Scheme, eligible owners of designated subsidised sale developments of
the Housing Society are allowed to let individual bedroom(s) without
payment of premium, as a move to release existing spaces for the
purpose of transitional homes.

To enhance the service, an online survey was conducted to gauge
public opinion relating to the Letting Scheme. Of the some 1,400
respondents, over 70% of respondents are in support of the initiative
enabling owners to let the entire flat to eligible tenant households with
premium unpaid. We are currently working closely with the
Government to explore the feasibility of the enhancement and
enhancements to the Scheme are expected to take effect by the latter
half of 2019.
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“T-Home” Project — Trackside Villas

In collaboration with the MTR Corporation Limited, the 252 flats in
Trackside Villas at Tai Po will be converted into transitional housing
units. It would be our third “T-Home" Scheme project. Project details
were discussed at the Tai Po District Council in May 2019. It is expected
the tenant intake will start in April 2020.

Project Management
Safety Incentives and Accident Rates

Safety always comes first in construction works. The upkeeping of
contractors’ and workers’ awareness, and the promotion of construction
safety knowledge is equally important.

During the review year, the Housing Society has conducted 13 site
safety workshops, 13 risk management workshops, and four integrity
workshops. Eight independent site safety audits have been undertaken
by the Occupational Safety and Health Council. Our efforts paid off with
the average accident rate per thousand workers kept at a low level of
8.7 for our construction sites.

In addition, a safety incentive scheme was put in place to reward
construction safety practices on site. Under the scheme, site workers
with good safety practices are presented with awards as a form of
incentive and recognition.

New Construction Method

As a "housing laboratory”, we continuously embrace innovative design
and construction methods for our projects. In support of the
Government’s drive to adopt “Modular Integrated Construction” (MiC)
approach in building construction, the Housing Society has decided to
employ this method for constructing an elderly units extension in Jat
Min Chuen, using the unused plot ratio there.

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2018/19

<« Trackside Villas of MTR
P [ SR E]

[Eif R AE — e

BB EsHARATAE - 1 252 R
S I T LIS SRy ER I
BEEEE - RARRETE=EEAE
RIH8EE - HAR-F-NAFEAEA
BEBRETHS  BHAPTR_F=
TEMAAK -

IBEER

TihREREIE

[Z2EL | REHREIROEZRA -
BEoh - MBFERERTANZZEH - A
REEZEZEABABEE -

FRBEHABITIZATHR2THES
TZRREBRERIES - RERHETE
o BEZ2RERINCET/NRE LM
BLEER - FHRIRETIEINEE -
#ETETIANFGRINRBEHR87HE
K o

LS - BT R 2 A E - RGHR
TANREEERR2TR 58T - F17
REFREHEBNBETASREEY - A
1ER B R FRRT

& AR A%

ERIERERE] EHRERETESR
B PRI RT Rt R K o AR BT
BRAAEAR REERBETHHE -
55 143 5 5 0 2 B OB B o R B R M 0t
LR - AR AR AR R % B -



The project is expected to put up for tender in 2019, with
commencement of work in the first quarter of 2020 and completion in
the first quarter of 2022. The building, which comprises around 70
elderly flats, will be the first elderly housing constructed using steel MiC
in Hong Kong.

The MiC approach, using the concept of off-site factory assembly of
modules followed by on-site module installation will be able to improve
site safety and create less disturbance and noise to nearby residents. It
also enables a more efficient building timeline and better quality
control. With the growing maturity in technology, we believe the
method will increasingly be adopted in future construction works.

Over the years, the Housing Society and its contractors have won
numerous building awards for its projects and building sites in
recognition of its adoption of outstanding design and best construction
practices.

Last year, The Tanner Hill — our first quality elderly housing project

— clinched two awards, namely Merit Award under the "Hong Kong
Residential (Multiple Buildings)” category of the Quality Building Award
(QBA) 2018, and Winner of the 6th Asia Pacific Eldercare Innovation
Awards for the “Best Silver Architecture — In Operation” organised by
Ageing Asia Pte Ltd in May 2018, for its innovative design and
outstanding quality.
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CONTRIBUTING TO A SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY

Hizolis@EtE

Expenditure on Social Projects
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(R&H) BEEBT BE-T-NAF=A=+—Hit
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2,254 M 1,715 (76%)

Building Management
2,000 and Maintenance

BFER RS
1,500 —

H 241 (11%)

City Revitalisation
1.000= WAL

500— 298 (13%)
Elderly Related
Services and Others

vear REMRRRY R A
18/19 &4

As an organisation committed to corporate social responsibility, it is
important to focus our efforts on the sustainable development and
betterment of our community and the environment. The Housing
Society has contributed to the cause by engaging in a wide array of
social initiatives, including the Elderly Resources Centre and various
community activities, and devoted a total of HK$96 million to support
our social projects during the year.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Our dedication to corporate social responsibility is manifested in a wide
range of community events and activities in which the Housing Society
took part. During the year, we supported and participated in 42
community events, ranging from large-scale sustainability conferences
to activities promoting physical or mental health awareness. A total of
HK$928,730 in contribution was made through donation or sponsorship,
striving for the betterment of our community.

Talent Development

Our young generation is our future, and that is why we need to nurture
the next generation with the belief that their talents and innovations
can bring a better future for our society. By means of encouraging the
pursuit of academic excellence among the younger generation, we
hope to bring up the best talents in society.
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CONTRIBUTING TO A SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY #20HEHE

For the 14" year running, the Hong Kong Housing Society Award (HKHS
Award) has contributed a total of HK$768,000 in student scholarships
and bursaries for 96 students from 10 local tertiary institutes and three
member institutions of the Vocational Training Council. The Award is
dedicated to nurturing talent in the local housing and elderly care
industries, bestowing recognition on students with outstanding
academic performance in the relevant disciplines. Apart from prize
money, awardees were also invited to visit the “Housing Society
Exhibition Centre”, “Elderly Resources Centre” and related government
departments. With a view to expanding the awardees’ network and
access to community service activities, we will be setting up the “"HS
Academy Alumni Club”. Club members will be invited to a series of
activities including talks and visits, to cultivate their understanding and
interests towards the industry.

On that note, we believe it is vital to equip our young people with
practical tools and on-the-job training. In 2018/19, our Summer
Internship Programme offered internship placements to a total of 54
undergraduate students from 20 tertiary institutions. We also took part
in the Industrial Attachment & Industrial-based Student Project of the
Vocational Training Council, placing students in various divisions of the
Housing Society with the purpose of giving them hands-on experience
in a working environment.
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This is the tenth year running that we have participated in the Yuen
Long District Secondary School Student Internship Programme and the
Work Experience Movement organised by the Education Bureau. In
2018/19, we have engaged 35 students in the related programmes.

To offer an opportunity to the younger generation to get acquainted
with the concept of cross-generation harmony, the HKHS Drama
Competition with the theme “Generation Gap? No Way!" was held in
spring 2019. A total of 20 entries was received from 19 secondary
schools and NGOs, and over 200 students, teachers, parents and guests
took part in the finale of the Competition. Participants were given a
chance to learn screenwriting in a workshop jointly organised by the
Housing Society and the Hong Kong Repertory Theatre. They also had
the opportunity to visit our Elderly Resources Centre to learn more
about elderly care. Through the use of creative screenplay, performance
and storytelling, secondary schools and non-profit organisations shared
their experiences on cross-generational relationships.

Environmental Protection

To minimise the environmental impact of our developments and
operations, we undertake various environmental impact reduction
measures across our construction projects and business operations.
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CONTRIBUTING TO A SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY #20HEHE

Close attention has been paid to environmental protection and
improvement in the sustainability of building operations. Energy saving
LED lighting was adopted during replacement, which is more long
lasting and efficient. In early 2019, the Solar Photovoltaic System was
first piloted at Cho Yiu Chuen, with 64 solar panels installed under the
Renewable Energy Feed-in Tariff Scheme.

For our new development projects, we adopt either a BEAM or BEAM
Plus Assessment in its design and construction to measure, improve
and label the environmental performance of each project. We use
environment-conscious construction materials and advocate recycling
wherever possible. Timber used in our temporary construction sites is
sourced from Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) certified vendors.

Construction projects are performed with wider consideration for the
environment and the society. We encourage contractors and project
participants to be socially aware, especially if construction involves

schools or hospitals in the vicinity, with a view to minimising disruption.

At the community level, we support various recycling activities to
promote the concept of green living among our residents. These
activities included recycling of red packets, festive food, used garment,
shopping bags and old books. During the review year, 39 estates had
participated and around 32,700 tonnes of domestic solid waste were
collected and recycled, among which 2,363 tonnes were waste paper.

For further details of our social and environmental achievements, please
refer to our Sustainability Report 2018/19.
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CONNECTING WITH OUR STAKEHOLDERS
BRiS5hsa

To strengthen our connection with all of our stakeholder groups, we
proactively engage the use of a diverse array of platforms and channels,
including news media, social media and direct communications, to
deliver information as well as to receive feedback and opinions
regarding our work.

Celebrating Our 70* Anniversary

In celebrating the 70" Anniversary of the Housing Society, we have
launched a series of public relations campaign under the theme “Create
Homes « Revive Communities” with the aim of promoting the Housing
Society and connecting with the general public and stakeholders.

The campaign kicked off at a cocktail reception on 17 April 2018, with
the Honourable Mrs Carrie Lam, Chief Executive of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region, as the Guest of Honour. She was joined
by over 600 distinguished guests, including Members of the Executive
and Legislative Councils, District Councillors, academia, industry peers
and residents’ representatives, in celebrating the important milestone
of the Housing Society.
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CONNECTING WITH OUR STAKEHOLDERS B8#11&

A series of activity to engage our residents and the community was
held to celebrate the occasion. An “Art in Estates” Mural Painting
Programme was held from January to April 2018, and photo exhibitions
capturing the fond memories of the old days were staged at our
housing estates.

A shopping promotion campaign was launched giving out HK$70 cash
coupons to our residential tenants and staff. Members of Housing
Society Community and residents also participated in the anniversary
celebration by expressing their creativity and delight through an Estate
Drawing Competition.

Roving exhibitions featuring our work and housing scenes of Hong
Kong over the past decades were held across the territory from May to
August 2018. The Honorary Adviser to the Hong Kong Museum of
History, Mr Cheng Po-hung, was invited to give two lectures entitled
“Anecdotes of Old Hong Kong", illustrating the histories of housing and
community development of old Hong Kong.

As the pioneer in tackling housing challenges posed by ageing
population in Hong Kong, the Housing Society spares no effort in
promoting the concept of “ageing in place”. In November 2018, an
International Housing Conference on “Building a Smart and Livable City

for an Ageing Community” was held. The conference was attended by
some 300 professionals from Hong Kong, Mainland China and overseas
to exchange experiences and valuable insights on the subjects of
elderly housing, liveable city and sustainable development.
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As the finale of the year-long celebration of the 70" Anniversary, our
first Exhibition Centre of Housing Society was opened in December
2018. Located at Prosperous Garden in Yau Ma Tei, the Exhibition
Centre creates an enriching experience for visitors to appreciate the
development of the Housing Society and the housing development of
Hong Kong, through guided tours and the use of innovative and
multimedia facilities. Apart from being a platform for visitors to
exchange views on various housing issues, it also serves as a medium of
Liberal Studies education on local housing development. Till the end of
the review year, the Exhibition Centre has received over 3,500 visitors.

Multiple Accolades from the Industry

“Create Homes « Revive Communities” campaign, the public relations
project launched in celebration of the 70™ anniversary of the Housing
Society, was very well received and supported by the public and
stakeholders with extensive media coverage. The campaign has
succeeded in strengthening our ties with the community and fostering
a positive image. It brought home multiple accolades, including the
Gold Award in the "NGOs/NPOs/Social Enterprises Communications”
category of The 4th Hong Kong Public Relations Award 2018, Silver
Award in the “Corporate Image & Corporate Social Responsibility”
category of the Digital Media Awards China 2019, and Bronze Award in
the “Best-PR-Led Integrated Communications” category of the PR
Awards 2018.
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Commasmities

Effective Communication through Diverse Channels
Publications

To maintain clear and effective communication with our stakeholders,
various publications outlining our projects and business activities were
produced and published to convey the messages, which include the
Annual Report, the Social and Environmental Report, the quarterly
newsletter Housing Society Today and staff bulletin Pulsar.

During the year, a special publication on The Tanner Hill was launched
as part of our ongoing campaign to promote “ageing in place”, by
sharing our stories behind the development of the quality elderly
housing project with the industry and the public. All publications issued
by the Housing Society are accessible to the public through our
corporate website.

Public Enquiry System

With serving and satisfying the expectation of our stakeholders as one
of our core values, we maintain constant dialogues and interaction with
stakeholders through two-way communication. During the review year,
a total of 2,424 enquiries were received and handled through our email
or hotline system. Most of the enquiries are from residents, tenants and
prospective homebuyers requesting information, seeking assistance, or
expressing opinions relating to our schemes and services.
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Social Media

Meanwhile, we continue to expand our reach to different age groups
across different social media platforms. Interesting stories about the
everyday lives of residents are shared on our blog "Housing Society
Community” via Facebook and YouTube. Readers may also find our
business updates, works and activities, as well as the latest about our
efforts in corporate social responsibility on these social media platforms.

As of 31 March 2019, the fan page has accumulated a total of 4,412
followers. During the year, 182 stories were featured, garnering a total
of 526,326 views and 7,095 positive reactions. In a bid to further raise
the awareness of the Housing Society among the younger generation,
we are planning to launch our official Instagram in mid-2019.

Engagement with the Press and Opinion Leaders

Over the years, we have made significant efforts in maintaining
transparent and open communication with the general public on our
works and activities, by means of various mainstream media and public
engagement in public activities.

During the review year, we participated in 54 media interviews, and
issued 16 press releases and press statement on a wide spectrum of
topics. A total of 15 media events, including networking lunches, tours
and briefings with media were organised on various topics, such as the
launch of the Housing Society Exhibition Centre. On the whole, the
media reports generated in 2018/19 were equivalent to an advertising
value of HK$140 million.

To gather feedback on residents’ housing concerns in different districts,
we organised 13 networking lunches and lobbying sessions with
various District Councillors, and 11 briefings or meetings with
Legislative Council members and concern groups. Discussion topics
included housing matters, project updates and other local matters.
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CONNECTING WITH OUR STAKEHOLDERS B&#11&

Professional Exchanges

To facilitate experience sharing and knowledge exchanges with
industry counterparts and various professionals, we regularly receive
guests from the local, Mainland and international organisations. Tours
and visits to our projects and meetings with the management staff
were arranged. In 2018/19, we received over 475 visitors, including
government officials, industry peers, student delegates, politicians and
teachers. During the year, among our visitors are representatives from
the Education Bureau, the Transport and Housing Bureau, the Macao
SAR Government, and the Global Institute For Tomorrow.

This year, a number of conferences and seminars were organised to
explore solutions to Hong Kong's housing challenges with industry
professionals, particularly in elderly housing, namely The “Ageing-in-
Place” Joint District Meeting cum Study Results Sharing Forum and the
International Housing Conference.

From time to time, our senior management team actively took part in
various speaking engagements at both academic and professional
events. In November 2018, the Housing Society Chairman Walter Chan
and other senior management staff attended the Housing Strategies
Summit co-hosted by five professional bodies and academic
institutions. During the year, we also participated in seminars and
exchange forums to promote the causes in relation to the mission of
the Housing Society, such as the World Alzheimer’'s Month Seminar, the
Chinachem Sustainability Conference on “Sustainable Neighbourhood:
How to Foster Age-Friendly Developments”, and the Client Contractor
Supplier Forum on “Modular Integrated Construction”, to name but a few.
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Income Distribution

WA BT

Year HKSmillion
5 BEEET
12 1,910

G . 2,784

2018/19

23 1,760 12

2017/18 Gl ® 5383
4,421 1,638 29
2016/17 ® 38,092
5,526 1,466
2015/16 _ 6,586
1,686 1,382 19
2014/15 ® 3.9%

as at 31 March 2019
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g Investment
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mm Others
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Overall Financial Performance

The Housing Society reported a total income of HKS$2,784 million for the
year ended 31 March 2019, which was about 48% or HK$2,599 million
lower than that of last year. Total expenses amounted to HK$ 1,699
million and a net surplus of HK$1,085 million was achieved. As at 31
March 2019, net asset value was HK$43 .4 billion, representing a 3%
growth, comprised of HK$9.5 billion in investment properties, HK$3.6
billion in properties under development for sale and HK$30.3 billion in
net financial assets and others.

Income Analysis

The Housing Society's total income decreased by HK$2,599 million to
HK$2,784 million. The decline was attributed to a decrease in our
investment returns, which stood at HK$853 million, due to volatility on
global investment markets.

Income from the property leasing and management operations was
HKS$1,910 million, representing 69% of the total income and a 9%
increase from last year. The increase was mainly due to the income
growth from our commercial premises, and the 8% rent increase in our
rental estates on 1 April 2018.
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Expenditure Distribution
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as at 31 March 2019
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Expense Analysis

Total expenses were HK$1,699 million, which is 8% or HK$127 million
higher than the previous year. Staff costs increased by 6.7% or HK$33
million, primarily due to salary adjustment and increased headcounts to
support the new housing initiatives. Other operating costs also
increased by HK$47 million, mainly from increased promotional
activities related to the Housing Society’s 70" anniversary, and
implementation of the new Transitional Rental Housing Scheme at Yue
Kwong Chuen.

Financial Outlook and Management
Property Developments for Sale

Property development is one of the Housing Society’s core businesses.
We have all along devised various housing schemes to assist people in
Hong Kong to fulfill their housing ownership aspirations. Currently, we
mainly focus on partnering with the Government to address the
shortage of affordable housing. These projects include Subsidised Sale
Flats (SSF), Dedicated Rehousing Estates and Transitional Housing
(T-Home).
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Net Assets Distribution

Projects under Planning and Committed Projects

REPREEENIAB

FEEDT
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Total 88

as at 31 March 2019
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EREERIHR SR
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ey e - Two Elderly Housing Projects - Eight Subsidised Sale Flats Projects - Building Management and
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. . BRETERRETE

[ ] Financial Assets - Three Rental Estate -+ Three Mixed Development Projects

and Others Redevelopment Projects ZERAHREER

BB E R EAM SEHERBERER

This year, we have three SSF projects in the pipeline, namely, Greenhill
Villa, Terrace Concerto and Mount Verdant, which are scheduled to be
completed in 2019 and 2020 respectively. Five new SSF projects will be
launched subsequent to the grant of project sites at Fanling Jockey
Club Road, Kai Tak and Anderson Road Quarry. Our Dedicated
Rehousing Estates at Pak Wo Road and Hung Shui Kiu are also under
development. Apart from the above, we also rolled out Transitional
Rental Housing Scheme at Yue Kwong Chuen, by means of utilising
vacant units for waitlisted applicants of public rental housing.

In June 2018, the Government changed the pricing mechanism for the
Home Ownership Scheme flats. Under the new mechanism, the
revenue from our future SSF projects are likely to be reduced, as the
selling prices of the subsidised units will be based on the target
customers’ affordability. To ensure our future projects are sustainable,
we were able to reach an agreement with the Transport and Housing
Bureau to lower our land premium payment for our subsidised sale flats
and rental units.
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Investment Portfolio

REME

HKSbillion
Bk +ET

as at 31 March 2019
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT §1#5&12

m 8.3 (26%)
%2 Short Term
To Act as Working Capital and to
Finance Existing Capital Projects

ERRBESREBREMERERE

©

Property Leasing and Management

The Housing Society has around 32,640 rental units in 20 estates,
accommodating around 83,000 tenants at discounted market rents. We
also provide 133,158 m? of commercial area with 24,676 m? office and
shops at 1063 King's Road, as well as 9,380 car-parking spaces in our
estates and managed properties.

In 2010, the Housing Society acquired a commercial building at 1063
King's Road for office use and leased out office floors for long-term
investment income. The commercial portfolio is operated on prudent
commercial principles with rents based on market value.

Ten of our rental estates are over 40 years old, among which seven of
them are aged more than 50. Thus, redeveloping ageing rental estates
remains a top priority to us. While we have been able to maintain a
surplus operation for our property leasing and management operation,
the rental income received from our rental estates is no longer sufficient
to cover the long-term costs of maintenance and improvement works
for our ageing estates, and thus our domestic operation has incurred a
deficit.
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Redeveloping ageing rental estates remains a top priority to us, and
places a heavy burden on our financials. The latest forecast estimates
that we need to spend around HK$52 billion to redevelop six of our
oldest rental estates. As the construction cost for redevelopment is
unlikely to be fully recovered from future rental income, we may need
to write down part of the carrying value of these investment properties
as we redevelop our estates.

As a not-for-profit organisation operating on self-financing principles,
the Housing Society will ensure programmes are well-planned and
resources are adequately allocated when undertaking new housing or
estate redevelopment projects.

Investment

Global investment markets were highly volatile during the financial
year. The year started with high hopes as the previous year was one of
the strongest years in recent history. The tax cuts in the US had
propelled the originally robust US economy to a new high with many
US corporations reporting strong earnings. However, as the year
progressed, an increase in US interest rates compounded by highly
sensitive trade negotiations between China and the US caused serious
concern regarding the pace of interest rate hikes of the US Federal
Reserve. The third quarter resulted in one of the worst quarters not seen
since the Global Financial Crisis. It was not until the end of the quarter
when the US Federal Reserve announced a more patient stance,
coinciding with a rapid improvement in the Sino-US trade negotiations
that markets made a recovery. Despite the turn around, US market gains
amounted to just over 4.5% over the year.

In Europe, Brexit had been the dominating news. In spite of the
tremendous efforts put forth by the British Prime Minister, Theresa May,
a smooth exit remained an illusion in the foreseeable future. Meanwhile,
there were also other concerns in the region, in particular Germany and
[taly.

In Asia, the Chinese economy continued to struggle, though a hard
landing seemed to be highly unlikely as fiscal support from the
Government showed promising results. A successful conclusion of the
trade negotiations with the US would further boost the flagging
economy. On the other hand, the Indian economy had been in retreat
and the election had put further strain on India’s growth prospects.
Finally, the peace talks between North Korea and the US had come to
an abrupt end, marking an end to any progress that would have been
made here.
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During the year, we conducted a review on the performances of seven
of our fund managers. The Investment Committee decided to retire one
fixed income manager and replace one equity manager. The new fund
manager was appointed in October 2018.

Despite the challenging investment environment over this financial
year, the strong performance last quarter kept returns positive for the
year.

Our Long-term Portfolio is to fund the redevelopment of our rental
estates. As the objective is to catch up with the construction cost
inflation in Hong Kong, the portfolio is fairly diversified and equity
biased. For the year ended 31 March 2019, it recorded a gain of 3.77%,
which outperformed the benchmark by 1.75%.

The Medium-term Portfolio is used to fund the development of
Subsidised Sale Flats projects. The portfolio strategy is relatively low risk
and fixed income biased. For the year ended 31 March 2019, it recorded
a gain of 2.54%, outperforming the benchmark by 0.05%.

With the objective of the Short-term Portfolio to preserve capital and to
ensure liquidity, we continue to manage the portfolio prudently by
placing the surplus cash into fixed deposits with maturity of no more
than 6 months. For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Short-term
Portfolio achieved a return of 2.42%, outperformed the benchmark by
0.52%.

Loan Administration

As at 31 March 2019, the Housing Society managed 1,047 loans granted
under various loan schemes. During the year, 15 loans were granted to
borrowers under the Integrated Building Maintenance Assistance
Scheme. Under this Scheme, 240 borrowers had fully redeemed or
partially repaid their loans. Legal proceedings were instituted against
one default borrower.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
EREB

Corporate Governance Structure
Incorporation

Hong Kong Housing Society was established in 1948 and incorporated
in 1951 under the Hong Kong Housing Society Incorporation Ordinance
(Cap 1059). It is an independent, not-for-profit organisation governed
by its members.

The Housing Society is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and recognises that good corporate governance
is crucial for its business sustainability in an ever-changing environment.
Transparency and the pursuit of best practices are the cornerstones of
this commitment.

Two-tier Board Structure

The Housing Society's two-tier board structure comprises a Supervisory
Board and an Executive Committee. This corporate governance model
separates the roles of oversight and management of operations. In
particular, the Supervisory Board determines the mission, vision, core
values and guiding principles of the Housing Society; the Executive
Committee sets the strategies and policies to achieve the mission and
objectives; and the Management is accountable for the implementation
of the strategies in business operations.

The Nominating Committee and the Audit Committee support the
Supervisory Board in the areas of membership nomination and
admission; and financial reporting and internal control respectively. The
Remuneration Committee supports the Executive Committee in the
areas of overall compensation strategy and the appointment and
remuneration of top management executives. Special committee may
also be established by the Executive Committee as and when necessary
to advise on specific business areas. Having various committees to
support the key board functions increases the board’s efficiency,
enhances its focus on high-impact issues, leverages specific skills
contained within the Housing Society membership, and deepens
members’ commitment.
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Efficient Board Process
Strategic Planning

The Housing Society adopts a rigorous and continuous strategic
planning process. Every calendar year, a brainstorming session is held
on the strategic business focuses and long-term development. In
addition to members of the Supervisory Board and the Executive
Committee, all other members are invited to join the session to share
their thoughts on various strategic initiatives and express their views on
the Housing Society’s roles, priorities and long-term development.
Members' views are taken into consideration in the formulation of the
corporate business plan. The brainstorming session for the year was
held on 14 December 2018, and was attended by 51 members and
senior management staff.

Information and Support

The Management submits an annual corporate business plan to the
Executive Committee for its approval. Progress is monitored and
evaluated through key performance indicators. The Supervisory Board
and the Executive Committee also receive quarterly and monthly
reports from the Management on financial performance and key events
and management decisions. Major decisions beyond the agreed
Management thresholds are submitted to the Executive Committee for
approval.

A schedule for Board and Committee meetings is prepared for each
calendar year. Standing agenda items are set to ensure that matters
relating to corporate strategy, corporate performance management,
finance, risk management and internal control, admission of members
and Board and Committee membership composition are discussed at
appropriate intervals through the year.

To help our members keep abreast of current trends and issues facing
the Housing Society, various business activities were arranged through
the year to update and refresh their knowledge necessary for the
performance of their duties and obligations. These included a Members'
Forum on Land Supply Options in Hong Kong and a visit to a building
constructed by “Modular Integrated Construction (MiC)” solution at the
MiC Display Centre of the Construction Industry Council. In addition,
our corporate newsletters, Housing Society Today and Pulsar, are
periodically issued to members to keep them updated on the Housing
Society’s business development and staff activities.
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Induction of New Board and Committee Members

A tailored orientation pack is provided to newly-joined Supervisory
Board members and other Committee members. This pack contains
information on the Housing Society’s governance structure and
strategic business focuses, terms of reference of the Supervisory Board,
Executive Committee and other Committees, as well as recent
discussion papers on major businesses. Induction meetings are also
arranged for new Board and Committee members with the Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director, and other Directors, so they
can receive information of the Housing Society's business operations
and latest developments.

Annual General Meeting

The Housing Society holds an annual general meeting (AGM) every
calendar year where the Chairman gives a brief synopsis of the
preceding year's business. The 2018 AGM was held on 6 September
2018 at the Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre and was
attended by 56 members. At the 2018 AGM, the Chairman reported the
Housing Society’s achievements in 2017/18. Key business resolved
included receipt of the audited financial statements and auditor’s
report for the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 and the annual
report for the year ended 31 March 2018; the appointment of an auditor
for the financial year 2018/19; and the election of Supervisory Board
members for the membership year 2018/19.

Enterprise Risk Management

The Housing Society established an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
framework in 2006/07. With assistance from our consultant, the
framework has been developed and refined over the years, particularly
with regard to the risk governance structure, namely risk identification,
assessment, monitoring and reporting.

With the ERM framework developed to an appropriate maturity level,
the Management internalised its maintenance in 2012/13 and conduct
corporate-wide risk assessment on an annual basis. The risk assessment
results and enhancements to the ERM framework are reported annually
to the Audit Committee for their review and to the Executive
Committee for their information. The Audit Committee also reports
these results and enhancements to the Supervisory Board.
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Membership of Housing Society

During the financial year, ten new members joined the Housing Society,
namely Mr Brian Chau, Mr Pius Cheng Kai-wah, Mr Laurence Ho Hoi-
ming, Mr Lam Sze-chuen, Mr Daniel Lau King-shing, Ms Anita Leung
Ping-fun, Mr Philip Lo Kai-wah, Mr Man Wai-ming, Mr Neville Shroff and
Miss Annie Tam Kam-lan. Our Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Mr James
Chan Yum-min, and Director (Development & Marketing), Mr Eric Yeung
Ka-hong, also joined as members of the Housing Society in their
respective official capacities as of 27 December 2018 and 1 October
2018 respectively. Mr Thomas Ho Hang-kwong resigned from the
membership of the Housing Society as of 15 October 2018 due to his
other personal pursuit.

The Housing Society had 146 members as of 31 March 2019, 60 of
whom served on the Supervisory Board, the Executive Committee and
various other Committees. A full list of Housing Society members is
shown on pages 34 to 37. Profiles of our Supervisory Board and
Executive Committee members, as well as our Directorate and Senior
Management Team, are shown on pages 28 to 33 and 38 to 39.

The membership composition of the Supervisory Board and the
Executive Committee comprises a balanced mix of professionals,
business executives, experts in community services and academia. The
diverse background of members ensures both the breadth and depth
of skills and also the expertise required to steer the development and
strategic direction of our businesses.

Election and Appointment of Board and Committee
Members

The term of office of members of the Supervisory Board, the Executive
Committee and the various Committees is normally three years (“year”
meaning the period between two consecutive AGMs for the calculation
of terms of office). At least one third of the existing members of the
Supervisory Board and the Executive Committee, excluding ex officio
members and the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of the
Housing Society, must retire from office at each AGM. This is to maintain
a balance between continuity and the introduction of new blood, while
ensuring that the Supervisory Board and the Executive Committee have
the calibre, skills and experience required. The Chairman and the
Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board are not required to retire and
will not be taken into account when determining the number of
members to retire during their three-year terms of office.
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Supervisory Board and Executive Committee
Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board establishes the Housing Society's mission, vision,
core values and guiding principles, and oversees all nomination,
election and audit functions. The Supervisory Board appoints members
to the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee and the Nominating
Committee and is responsible for their performance. It also advises and
provides guidance to the Executive Committee on issues of stakeholder
interests, public relations and changes in the external environment.

As of 1 April 2018, the Supervisory Board had 25 members including 20
who were elected, four government officials as ex officio members,
namely the Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing),
Director of Lands, Director of Planning and Director of Buildings, as well
as the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director. In order to recruit
new members and ensure a smooth succession process, a “two-year
grace period” requirement has been adopted since the 2015 AGM.
Accordingly, a member who retires from the Supervisory Board after six
or more consecutive years of service will not be eligible for re-election
for two years until the second AGM following his/her retirement.

At the AGM held on 6 September 2018, eight Supervisory Board members
retired, namely, Mr Au Choi-kai, Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok, Prof Eddie Hui
Chi-man, Mr Lincoln Leong Kwok-kuen, Ms Julia Lau Man-kwan,

Mr Marco Wu Moon-hoi, Mr Victor Chan Hin-fu and Dr Lau Kwok-yu,
thereby fulfilling the one-third retirement rule. Mr Victor Chan Hin-fu
and Dr Lau Kwok-yu were not eligible to stand for re-election to the
Supervisory Board as they had already served for two consecutive
three-year terms. Mr Lincoln Leong Kwok-kuen opted not to stand for
re-election and Ms Julia Lau Man-kwan chose to step down from the
Supervisory Board. Mr Au Choi-kai, Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok, Prof Eddie
Hui Chi-man and Mr Marco Wu Moon-hoi stood for re-election and
were successfully re-elected to the Supervisory Board. The four other
members elected to the Supervisory Board were Dr Lam Ching-choi,
Prof Ling Kar-kan, Mrs Agnes Mak Tang Pik-yee and Mr Alvin Mak Wing-
sum. Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok and Prof Ling Kar-kan were elected the
Chairman and the Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board respectively
at the Supervisory Board meeting held immediately after the 2018 AGM.
The Supervisory Board consisted of 25 members as of 31 March 2019.
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During the year, five Supervisory Board meetings were held with an
overall attendance rate of 90 per cent. The Supervisory Board reviewed
the overall corporate strategic plan; the corporate business focuses for
2018/19; the consolidated views of the 2018 brainstorming session; and
the half-year reports submitted by the Audit Committee. It also received
from Management a full-year report for 2017/18; quarterly reports on
major events and management decisions; and papers on topical issues,
such as the transitional rental housing scheme and updates on housing
projects and new initiatives. Based on the Nominating Committee’s
recommendations, the Supervisory Board approved the admission of
ten new members to the Housing Society and appointed members to
the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee approves strategies proposed by
Management, monitors Management performance and approves
recommendations made by the Remuneration Committee and the
Special Committees where appropriate, as well as major decisions
beyond Management thresholds. It also appoints members to the
Remuneration Committee and the Special Committees.

There were 12 members on the Executive Committee as of 1 April 2018,
comprising the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory
Board, the Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing)
serving as an ex officio member, the Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director, and eight members appointed by the Supervisory
Board. At the AGM held on 6 September 2018, four members retired
from the Executive Committee, namely the Chairman, Mr Marco Wu
Moon-hoi, the Vice-Chairman, Mr Lincoln Leong Kwok-kuen, Mr Edgar
Kwan Chi-ping and Dr Lam Ching-choi, thereby fulfilling the one-third
retirement rule. Mr Marco Wu Moon-hoi, Mr Lincoln Leong Kwok-kuen
and Dr Lam Ching-choi had already served on the Executive Committee
for two consecutive three-year terms and were not eligible for re-
appointment. Mr Edgar Kwan Chi-ping expressed interest in re-
appointment to the Executive Committee. At the Supervisory Board
meeting held immediately after the 2018 AGM, Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok,
who had been elected Chairman of the Supervisory Board, acted as the
Chairman of the Executive Committee. Prof Ling Kar-kan, who had been
elected Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board, acted as the Vice-
Chairman of the Executive Committee. Additionally, Mr Edgar Kwan
Chi-ping was re-appointed and two other members, Mr Victor Chan
Hin-fu and Ms Julia Lau Man-kwan, were appointed to the Executive
Committee for a three-year term of office. The Executive Committee
comprised 12 members as of 31 March 2019.
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During the year, the Executive Committee held 11 meetings with an
overall attendance rate of 90 per cent. The key areas of review of the
Executive Committee included 2017/18 corporate performance;
corporate performance measures for 2018/19; audited financial
statements for the year-ended 31 March 2018; and the corporate
business plan and consolidated budget for 2018/19. The Executive
Committee also reviewed the remuneration policy and maternity and
paternity leave policy based on the recommendations of the
Remuneration Committee. The Executive Committee also deliberated
on a number of housing projects under planning and development.
These included transitional housing and rehousing projects, Senior
Citizen Residences Scheme projects and the pilot “Letting Scheme for
Subsidised Sale Developments with Premium Unpaid”. The Executive
Committee also reviewed the Housing Society’s IT strategy; the waiting
list income and asset limits for domestic rental estates; as well as
housing-related researches and studies, including the report on the
overall effectiveness of the elderly housing model for various income
groups.

The Executive Committee also received from Management an annual
risk assessment report on strategic and operational risks. Based on the
Special Committee on Investment’s recommendations, the Executive
Committee approved the asset allocation and appointment of
professional fund managers for investment portfolios. The Executive
Committee appointed members to the Remuneration Committee
based on the recommendations of the Nominating Committee. The
Executive Committee also reviewed the results of the self-assessment
exercise by the Special Committee on Investment, the Special
Committee on Elderly Housing and the Task Force on Design and
Construction; and also appointed members of the two Special
Committees. For the Task Force on Design and Construction, the
Executive Committee approved its conversion into a Special Committee
on Planning, Design and Construction, and also approved its Terms of
Reference and membership composition.

Emoluments for Executive Committee Members

Non-ex officio members of the Executive Committee received an
honorarium in recognition of their level of accountability and time
commitment in committee work. These emoluments are set by the
Supervisory Board, with current levels effective since 29 September
2016. The Chairman and the Vice-Chairman are entitled to HK$36,000
and HK$18,000 per month respectively, while HK$9,000 per month is
offered to each of the other non-ex officio members. As of 31 March
2019, two out of the ten non-ex officio Executive Committee members
had opted not to receive these emoluments.
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Other Committees
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee acts on behalf of the Supervisory Board to
oversee the Housing Society’s internal and external audits and financial
reporting. It also monitors the internal control systems, risk
management system, overall ethical standards and compliance with
applicable laws.

As of 1 April 2018, the Audit Committee had 13 members, all of whom
were non-management members of the Housing Society. The
Chairman and the Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board and the
chairmen of the other Committees were not eligible to be members of
the Audit Committee. At the AGM held on 6 September 2018, Mr Sunny
Lee Wai-kwong, Mr Wilson Wong Chiu-sang and Mr Henry Yap Fat-suan
having served six consecutive years retired from the Audit Committee
and were not eligible for re-appointment. Mr Joseph Lee Chin-wai,

Mr Alvin Mak Wing-sum, Dr Isaac Ng Ka-chui and Mr Nicholas Tan
Tsung-yuan retired from the Audit Committee after completing their
three-year terms of office and opted for re-appointment to the Audit
Committee. In addition, the Chairman of the Audit Committee,

Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok, chose to step down from the Audit Committee.
At the Supervisory Board meeting held immediately after the 2018 AGM
on 6 September 2018, Mr Joseph Lee Chin-wai, Mr Alvin Mak Wing-sum,
Dr Isaac Ng Ka-chui and Mr Nicholas Tan Tsung-yuan were re-appointed.
Mr Brian Chau, Ms Anita Leung Ping-fun and Miss Annie Tam Kam-lan
were appointed to the Audit Committee for a three-year term of office.
Mr Alvin Mak Wing-sum was also appointed as Chairman of the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee consisted of 12 members as of 31
March 2019.

During the year, the Audit Committee held four meetings with an
overall attendance rate of 78 per cent. Key work done relating to
financial reporting and audit included the review of the nature and
scope of the audit, the new and revised accounting standards, the
results of the audit and the audited annual financial statements for the
approval of the Executive Committee. A private session with the
external auditor was held without the presence of Management. The
Audit Committee also made a recommendation to the Supervisory
Board regarding the appointment of an external auditor, for approval
by Housing Society members at the 2018 AGM.
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In respect of compliance, internal control and risk management, the
Audit Committee approved the annual internal audit plan and reviewed
the implementation status. It reviewed eight internal audit reports and
the implementation of the agreed management actions. The Audit
Committee also reviewed a number of other reports including the
enterprise risk management framework and annual risk assessment
update; the technical audit reports on project and property
maintenance; the report on complaints referred by the Office of the
Ombudsman and the corruption prevention advisory reports from the
Corruption Prevention Department of the Independent Commission
Against Corruption. The Audit Committee submitted reports to the
Supervisory Board on a half-yearly basis on the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the compliance, ethical standards, risk management
and internal control systems based on the work of the internal and
external assurance providers.

Nominating Committee

The Nominating Committee acts on behalf of the Supervisory Board
and oversees the Housing Society’s membership nomination and
election processes, as well as admission of new members to the
Housing Society. It is dedicated to ensuring that the Housing Society
membership consists of a balanced mix of skills and professional
backgrounds.

There were seven members on the Nominating Committee as of 1 April
2018, comprising the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman of the
Supervisory Board, the Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing
(Housing) serving as an ex officio member, the Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Director, the immediate past Chairman of the Supervisory
Board, and two other members of the Supervisory Board. At the
Supervisory Board meeting held immediately after the 2018 AGM, the
newly-elected Chairman Mr Walter Chan Kar-lok and the newly-elected
Vice-Chairman Prof Ling Kar-kan, served as the Chairman and a member
of the Nominating Committee respectively. Mr Marco Wu Moon-hoi
and Mr Lincoln Leong Kwok-kuen continued serving on the Nominating
Committee in their capacities as the immediate past Chairman and the
immediate past Vice-Chairman of the Housing Society respectively. The
Nominating Committee consisted of eight members as of 31 March
2019.
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During the year, the Nominating Committee held one meeting with an
attendance rate of 71 per cent. The Nominating Committee
recommended ten candidates for admission as Housing Society
members, namely Mr Brian Chau, Mr Pius Cheng Kai-wah, Mr Laurence
Ho Hoi-ming, Mr Lam Sze-chuen, Mr Daniel Lau King-shing, Ms Anita
Leung Ping-fun, Mr Philip Lo Kai-wah, Mr Man Wai-ming, Mr Neville
Shroff and Miss Annie Tam Kam-lan, recommendations that were all
approved by the Supervisory Board. The Nominating Committee also
made recommendations on the membership rotation and retirement
of the Supervisory Board, the Executive Committee and various
Committees.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee acts on behalf of the Executive
Committee and oversees the Housing Society’s overall compensation
strategy and the performance and remuneration of top management
executives. The Remuneration Committee also oversees succession
planning for the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director and
other top management executives.

There were six members on the Remuneration Committee as of 1 April
2018. All members of the Remuneration Committee were non-
management members of the Housing Society. At the AGM held on

6 September 2018, Mr Robert Young Man-kim stepped down from the
Remuneration Committee after serving six consecutive years and he
was not eligible for re-appointment. The Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, Mr Edgar Kwan Chi-ping, and Mr Wilfred Wong Kam-pui
completed their three-year terms of office and indicated their intention
to be re-appointed. At the Executive Committee meeting held on

20 September 2018, Mr James Siu Kai-lau was appointed while Mr Edgar
Kwan Chi-ping and Mr Wilfred Wong Kam-pui were re-appointed to the
Remuneration Committee for a three-year term of office. Mr Edgar
Kwan Chi-ping was also re-appointed as Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The Remuneration Committee consisted of six members as
of 31 March 2019.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings with
an overall attendance rate of 92 per cent. Key areas under review of the
Remuneration Committee included the remuneration policy, special
review on variable compensation scheme and annual salary review,
compensation for the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
and the top management executives, with recommendations made for
approval by the Executive Committee. The Remuneration Committee
also endorsed the appointment of Deputy Chief Executive Officer for
approval by the Executive Committee.
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Special Committee on Investment

The role of the Special Committee on Investment is to establish
objectives and strategies for the Housing Society's investments. It
reviews the performance of professional fund managers and considers
the asset allocations and appointment of professional fund managers
and the custodian bank, for the Executive Committee’s approval.

The Special Committee on Investment had eight members as of 1 April
2018. All members retired at the AGM held on 6 September 2018 in line
with the tenure expiry of this Special Committee. All members, with the
exception of Ms Linda Kwo Lai-ming, expressed interest in continuing
to serve on the Special Committee. At the Executive Committee
meeting held on 20 September 2018, the tenure of this Special
Committee was renewed for three years until the 2021 AGM.

Mr Desmond Chan Kwok-kit was re-appointed as Chairman of the
Special Committee for a one-year term of office to align with his term of
office on the Executive Committee; Mr Wallace Lam Wing-ted, Mr Stuart
Hamilton Leckie, Mr Martin Leung Oh-man, Mr Alvin Mak Wing-sum,

Mr Martin K Matsui and Mr Stanley Wong Yuen-fai were re-appointed
and Mr Kevin Kwong Ka-wing was appointed as members of the Special
Committee for a three-year term of office. Mr Kevin Kwong Ka-wing
resigned from this Special Committee as of 19 February 2019. There
were seven members on the Special Committee on Investment as of

31 March 2019.

During the year, the Special Committee on Investment held one
meeting with an overall attendance rate of 50 per cent. In addition to
monitoring the performance of our fund managers, it also reviewed the
contracts of three fund managers and recommended the appointment
of a new fixed income manager for the Executive Committee’s
approval.

Special Committee on Elderly Housing

The Special Committee on Elderly Housing was set up by the Executive
Committee in 2008 to give guidance to and review the Management's
proposals in respect of the Housing Society’s various elderly housing
initiatives. These included planning, schematic design, financial
feasibility and operational models of the proposed elderly housing
projects to be undertaken by the Housing Society.
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There were 13 members on the Special Committee on Elderly Housing
as of 1 April 2018. All members retired at the AGM held on 6 September
2018 in line with the tenure expiry of this Special Committee.

Mrs Cecilia Lee Yip Wai-kay and Dr Lawrence Li Kwok-chang had served
the Special Committee for six consecutive years and were not eligible
for re-appointment. Mr Philip Liao Yi-kang did not seek re-appointment
after completing his three-year term of office. All other retired
members, namely Mr Timothy Ma Kam-wah, Mr Kenneth Chan Chi-yuk,
Mr Patrick Lau Lai-chiu, Mrs Miranda Leung Chan Che-ming, Ms Ophelia
Chan Chiu-ling, Mr Lawrence Lam Yin-ming, Mr Victor Chan Hin-fu and
Dr Danny Wan Tak-fai completed their terms of office and confirmed
their desire to seek re-appointment. The Chairman of the Supervisory
Board, Mr Marco Wu Moon-hoi, and the Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director were the ex officio members of this Special
Committee.

At the Executive Committee meeting held on 20 September 2018, the
tenure of this Special Committee was renewed for three years until the
2021 AGM. At the same meeting, Mr Kenneth Chan Chi-yuk, Mr Patrick
Lau Lai-chiu, Mrs Miranda Leung Chan Che-ming, Ms Ophelia Chan
Chiu-ling, Mr Lawrence Lam Yin-ming, Mr Victor Chan Hin-fu and

Dr Danny Wan Tak-fai were re-appointed, while Dr Lau Kwok-yu,

Miss Annie Tam Kam-lan, Mr Henry Yap Fat-suan and Mr Robert Young
Man-kim were newly appointed to this Special Committee for a three-
year term of office. Mr Timothy Ma Kam-wah was re-appointed as
Chairman of this Special Committee for a two-year term of office to
align with his term of office on the Executive Committee. Mr Walter
Chan Kar-lok, the newly elected Chairman of the Supervisory Board,
served as an ex officio member on the Special Committee. The Special
Committee on Elderly Housing comprised 14 members (including two
ex officio members, namely, the Chairman of the Housing Society and
the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director) as of 31 March 2019.

During the year, the Special Committee on Elderly Housing held two
meetings with an overall attendance rate of 75 per cent. It continuously
monitored the operations of The Tanner Hill elderly housing project to
ensure the delivery of a world class service standard. It also thoroughly
reviewed the overall effectiveness of numerous elderly housing models
and elderly-related schemes for various income groups, including the
Ageing-In-Place Scheme, Elderly Resources Centre, Senior Citizen
Residences Scheme and The Tanner Hill.
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Special Committee on Planning, Design and Construction
(previously Task Force on Design and Construction)

The Task Force on Design and Construction (originally Task Force on
Construction) was set up by the Executive Committee in 2010 to assist
in monitoring the various aspects of major development projects,
including time, quality and cost. In view of the complexity and scale of
the upcoming projects of the Housing Society, it was converted to a
Special Committee on Planning, Design and Construction by the
Executive Committee at its meeting on 20 September 2018 for a tenure
of three years.

The Task Force on Design and Construction had eight members as of 1
April 2018. All members retired at the AGM held on 6 September 2018
in line with the tenure expiry of the Task Force. Mr Yue Chi-hang had
already served on the Task Force for six consecutive years and was not
eligible for re-appointment. Mr Peter Mok Kwok-woo indicated not to
stand for re-appointment and Prof James Lau Chi-wang, a co-opted
member for the Tuen Mun River Footbridge project, stepped down
from the Task Force upon completion of the project. All the other
members agreed to continue serving the future Special Committee. At
the Executive Committee meeting held on 20 September 2018, Mr Au
Choi-kai, Ms Julia Lau Man-kwan, Mr Felix Lok Man-fai, Mr Kyran Sze,

Mr Conrad Fung Kwok-keung and Mr Philip Lo Kai-wah were appointed
as members of the Special Committee on Planning, Design and
Construction for a three-year term of office, while Prof Wong Bay was
appointed as Chairman of this Special Committee for a one-year term
to align with his term of office on the Executive Committee. At the
Executive Committee meeting held on 21 March 2019, Mr Lam Sze-
chuen was appointed to the Special Committee for a three-year term of
office. The Special Committee consisted of eight members as of 31
March 2019.
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During the year, the Special Committee held three meetings with an
overall attendance rate of 90 per cent. The Special Committee
conducted an overview of the Master Development Programme and
the development details of the Housing Society’s ongoing and planned
projects. Management's road map for “Modular Integrated
Construction” (MiC) and Building Information Modelling (BIM) for the
forthcoming projects were also reviewed. It had considered and
endorsed tender recommendations for the two foundation works
contracts, namely for the Shek Pai Wan Road and Pak Wo Road projects,
as well as Management's initiation of the proposed Elderly Flats
Provision with MiC at Jat Min Chuen. The Special Committee took note
of the information regarding new projects at Anderson Road Quarry
and the Kai Tak area, and also provided advice and suggestions on
procurement strategies for consultancy services around the projects.
The Special Committee also visited sites for projects under construction,
inspected the Handover Quality Standard Mock-ups and also reviewed
construction progress of the Terrace Concerto and the Mount Verdant
respectively. Furthermore, it kept track of the progress of major
development and redevelopment projects, including regularly
reviewing Management's progress reports.
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Members’ Activities Z&;& &)

¥ Current and former Chairmen, as well as
current members of the Supervisory Board and
the Executive Committee, gathered at
Homecoming Dinner to celebrate the Society's
70th Anniversary.
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Annual General Meeting of
the Housing Society and the
Society's Annual Dinner 2018.
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¥ Members attended the farewell lunch to celebrate the retirement
HOMG KONG HOWSE SOCIITY ANNAL DESHER N ; - .
| of Mr Daniel Lau, former Director (Development and Marketing).
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A At Annual Dinner 2018, Long Service Awards for Board
and Committee Members were presented to four Members.
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Members attended the International
Housing Conference with the
theme “Building a Smart and
Liveable City for an Ageing
Community”.
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Members visited the first building constructed
by Modular Integrated Construction (MiC)
solution in Hong Kong at the MiC Display
Centre of the Construction Industry Council.
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Members of the Executive Committee met with Mrs Carrie
Lam, the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region to discuss housing issues.
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ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT
EXREREIR

Risk management is a fundamental element of corporate governance,
playing an integral part in the Housing Society's strategic planning,
business development and monitoring processes. Its integration into
our business planning process and daily operations enables the
Management to make risk-informed decisions and provides better
assurances to achieve long-term corporate goals.

The Housing Society has adopted an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
framework as a tool to proactively identify and manage strategic and
operational risks relating to the organisation. Under this framework, we
have established a risk governance structure and defined the risk
management processes.

Risk Management Governance Structure and
Processes

The Housing Society has a tiered structure in risk governance, which
allows for clearly defined roles and responsibilities for each party under
the established governance structure.

Risk management at the Housing Society has board-level commitment
and oversight. Our Audit Committee reports to the Supervisory Board
and is responsible for monitoring the Society’s internal control system,
including risk management, overall ethical standards and compliance
with applicable regulations. Internal and external auditors also refer to
this risk management system to determine required assessments and
reviews, which ultimately complement the overall control environment.

The Risk Management Committee, which comprises the Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Directors
and senior managers, has an overall accountability for managing the
Housing Society’s key risks and ensuring the effectiveness of risk
management processes. At the operational level, all our employees are
responsible for identifying, managing and reporting operational risks in
their own functions.
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Risk management is embedded in our business processes to ensure
that our responses to risks remain current and dynamic. During the
business planning cycle, the Management assesses the risks in
achieving our strategic objectives, and incorporates relevant mitigating
and control measures for subsequent monitoring. In 2018/19, we had
conducted regular operational reviews for different businesses, and
critical issues with substantial impact on the Housing Society were
reported to the Executive Committee and Audit Committee in a timely
manner.

Risk Assessment and Management

Once a year, the Management conducts an organisation-wide
assessment of the Housing Society's overall risk exposure across
different business processes, reviewing strategic and operational risks
and updating respective controls to reflect the current business
environment. The risk assessment results are captured in a Corporate
Risk Register, with the findings reported to both the Executive
Committee and Audit Committee.

We also perform business continuity drills periodically to ensure that
the Housing Society's Business Continuity Plan (BCP) is effective and
that critical services are delivered during emergency or crisis situations.
The BCP covers our critical business processes, alternate office
arrangements and activation procedures, an IT disaster recovery process
as well as the resumption of office procedures.

The Housing Society is exposed to strategic risks in the pursuit of its
corporate objectives. For balanced and systematic risk management
covering stakeholders and capabilities, we have defined strategjic risks
in four perspectives: Customers, Government & Community, Corporate
Governance & Process and Resources.
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Operational risks affect the effectiveness of our daily operations and we
have classified eleven risks that would substantially affect our corporate
operating performance. To handle them most effectively, we
subsequently defined risk-mitigating measures and captured Key Risk
Indicators on a regular basis for risk monitoring. These included
measures to ensure that our housing products and related services are
financially viable and delivered according to the expectations of our
various stakeholders. Measures were also defined to monitor the cost,
progress, quality and safety standards of all the housing projects under
development.

As the Housing Society operates on a self-financing principle, we have
put in place a process to closely monitor the financial performance of
our securities investments under an established investment framework,
and ensure there are sufficient funds for projects in the development
pipeline. Mitigating measures are also defined and monitored regularly
to address operational risks related to our internal capabilities and
support from information technology, human resources, corporate
communications and corporate services.

Key Areas of Strategic Risks
Property Sales

In June 2018, the Government changed the pricing mechanism for the
Home Ownership Scheme flats. Under the new mechanism, the
revenue from our future Subsidised Sale Flats (SSF) projects are likely to
be reduced, as the subsidised units are priced at an affordable level
linked to the median income of non-owner occupier households.

To ensure our long-term financial sustainability, the Management had
reviewed the financial models of our SSF projects and various mixed
housing schemes. With the support of the Transport and Housing
Bureau, we were able to secure a revised land premium arrangement,
which would lower our future development cost. Going forward, we
will ensure our projects are designed and constructed in a cost-efficient
manner, and match the expectations of our customers.

Dedicated Rehousing Estates

The primary purpose of the DRE is to accommodate the rehousing
needs of eligible households affected by the Government’s
development clearance exercises. As this is a long-term and extended
process, the Management will explore ways to ensure financial viability
of our projects in the pipeline with a view to continuing our support to
the government’s development clearance exercises.
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Elderly Housing

Our third SEN project at Lee Kung Street commenced construction in
December 2018. To address the needs of our target customers, the
Management will optimise the facilities and design based on
experience with the two existing developments and feedback from our
tenants. We will also review the sustainability of the SEN business
model to explore the opportunities arising from the housing needs of
this rapidly growing sector of the population.

Property Leasing and Management

Earlier this year, the Housing Society had communicated with different
stakeholders regarding the decanting arrangement for Phase 2
redevelopment of Ming Wah Dai Ha. As the affected tenants are from
low-income groups who may not be able to afford the rent of the new
blocks, the Management has worked out different options and financial
assistance for the tenants to ensure a smooth decanting process.

Redevelopment of Rental Estates

Today we have seven rental estates that are more than 50 years old. Our
long-term commitment to redevelop our ageing estates is a heavy
burden on our financial reserves. To this end, the Government has
revised the land premium arrangements under which future rental
housing projects will only be charged a nominal land premium.
Nonetheless, the challenges remain substantial as it is very difficult to
identify suitable re-housing sites due to tenants’ expectation of in-situ
re-housing.

During the year, the Government announced that it had reserved a site
at Kai Tak for the redevelopment of Chun Seen Mei Chuen.

Risk assessment and monitoring have been embedded in the Housing
Society’s management process. The Management will continue to
review and enhance the ERM framework by referring to insights on
leading practices, taking into account our operational environments
and overall risk appetite.
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EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

S TRARKEHRIx

Headcount by Division

SEPIETAK

No. of Staff as at 31 March 2019
RIZA BE-ZT-NF=A=t—AL
H 1,012 (78.4%)
Property Management Division

U E ALk
1,290 B 141(10.9%)

Corporate Planning and
Finance Division

1SR BN B 75 20

Il 57 (4.4%)
Development and Marketing Division

MERRRTIHELE

Total {281

I 42 (3.4%)

Projects Division

TR B

38 (2.9%)

Chief Executive Officer

and Executive Director’s Office

TRARYFHTABRERIE

In 2018/19, substantial resources have been deployed in the
development of our staff and IT structure, which their performance and
capacity are essential to our operations and long-term growth. At the
end of March 2019, the Housing Society’s total headcount was 1,290.

Developing a Professional Team
Learning and Development

During the review period, we provided an average of 4.04 days of
training per staff. Training for employees cover topics ranging from
supervisory management, personal effectiveness to soft skills for
enhancing staff's professional and technical knowledge. We firmly
believe that talent is one of the most important assets of the
organisation, thus we focus on talent identification, development and
strengthening of management competencies in strategic thinking and
corporate governance training.

A triennial corporate-wide team building training programme was held
from October 2018 to March 2019, themed “ONE Team ONE Goal” with
emphasis on enhancing critical thinking and collaboration among staff.
A total of 25 sessions were arranged and 1,241 employees had
participated, accounting for about 96% of eligible staff members.
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Staff Integrity and Professional Ethics

The Housing Society attaches great importance to the integrity and
professional ethics of our employees. Representatives from the
Independent Commission Against Corruption, the Office of the Privacy
Commissioner for Personal Data, the Equal Opportunities Commission
and the Office of the Ombudsman were invited to deliver talks on
legislation pertaining to anti-corruption, personal data, equal
opportunities and the implementation of the Code on Access to
Information.

These talks equipped our staff with clear guidance on upholding
honesty, fairness and professional ethics while performing their day-to-
day duties. During the review year, seven refresher workshops were
held, attracting around 500 managerial and general staff.

A policy briefing session entitled “People Management Programme for
Managers (Recruitment, Managing Performance and Disciplinary
Procedures, Compensation and Benefits)” was held in March 2019,
attracting 38 supervisory staff. It facilitated their understanding of
relevant ordinances, policies and procedures. During the session,
experience and skills in people management were shared among the
participants to enhance their competence.
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Staff ’s Years of Service

S TR FH

No. of Staff
BIHA

as at 31 March 2019
BE-Z-NF=A=t+—81
Il 502 (38.9%)

Less than 3 years
PR=EF
145(11.2%)

3-5 years

=ERF

N 218 (17.0%)

5-10 years
AETE

1,290

Total #8%

m 221 (17.1%)
10-20 years
TE-+F

204 (15.8%)

20 years and above

T FERNAE

Promoting Teamwork and a Caring Culture

In 2018/19, the Housing Society continued to engage our staff through
a variety of events.

In celebration of our 70™ Anniversary, the Annual Dinner held at the
Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre on 6 September 2018
was attended by around 880 staff, in addition to members of the Board
and Committees. On the occasion, 78 staff members were awarded
Long Service Awards, among which seven of them had joined the
Housing Society for 30 years.

A caring and family-friendly culture was promoted among our staff and

their families. A range of work-life balance activities, such as health talks,

seminars and field trips, were held during the year. A total of 756 staff
members and their families took part in the activities. A Flu Vaccination
Scheme was set up for staff members and their families. Various health
and nutrition tips were delivered to our staff through the online health
portal “Health Corner”.

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2018/19
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Recognising the importance of family, we extend our care to family EMARRELHEIMSZHEE - K
members of our staff. We established the Housing Society Scholarship HETITWHEEHREZARA RZZTZTX
and Bursary Scheme for Employees’ Children in 2006 in an effort to FRUNIEMEIFREHES |58

encourage the pursuit of academic studies. This year, five students have SEEINFRESE FFRES - XK
been awarded scholarships in recognition of their stellar academic FE FLEAZERRARES  UEFHE
performance, another 39 students were granted bursaries. In 2018/19, HEEHMEMRER SE=-TNLE22LER
Family Fun Day was organised with diverse itinerary options to choose BEs - NZT— )\ —NEFE  EHREH
from, enabling all of our staff to enjoy pleasant leisure time with families [RERLH ] REZENRITEA HE
and friends. Around 3,060 staff, their families and friends took part in B EZrREIHIAPBRREERRIKE
the activities, with staff participation rate of around 98%. Byt o JEBIIRBIA3,0608 B TRRARK

28 BT2EXHY/AD TN -

In addition, in line with the proposed measure on maternity leave in the o BESTTERERE ZZE— \FHEB®
Chief Executive's 2018 Policy Address, maternity leave is extended from EREEMERNER FHiEERS
10 weeks to 14 weeks, and male colleagues are entitled to enjoy 5 days TERERE+NENR mMBERFERATE
of full-pay paternity leave. BRREHHEREN -

EEEEBHE2018/19FEFR
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The Housing Society has participated in the “Family-Friendly Employers
Award Scheme” organised by The Family Council. The scheme aims to
recognise employers that have demonstrated a family-friendly spirit
and implemented related policies and practices. During the year, we
have been awarded the “Family-Friendly Employer”, and the “Award for
Breastfeeding Support”. Meanwhile, we were given the “Happy
Organisation” label presented by the Promoting Happiness Index
Foundation and the Hong Kong Productivity Council. Our dedication to
establishing a happy workplace and encouraging our staff to lead a
balanced life was well recognised.

Information Technology Support

Information technology (IT) infrastructure is the backbone of our
operations. As such, we continue to promote effective stewardship of
information assets and strive to provide a secure and highly reliable
technology infrastructure coupled with high quality customer-centric
services to satisfy the information needs of our customers and
employees.

External consultants have been engaged to review our network
infrastructure in order to ensure the network design is living up to
industry’s best practices for performance, reliability and resiliency. In
addition, we have successfully upgraded our user computing platform
to Windows 10 to improve both operational efficiency and security.

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2018/19
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Investment in Information Technology

SRR L BHNRE

Year HKSmillion
Fp BEEET

25
2018/19

m |

201718
2016/17
22
01516 CEEE—
27
01475 C—

as at 31 March 2019
HE-T-NAF=A=t+—H1t

®

To cope with business needs, various enhancements had been made to
our internal computer systems during the year. Our enhanced iHousing
Property Management System was beefed up to provide ample support
for implementing the Rent Assistance Scheme and Well-off Tenants
Policy in the rental estates. Meanwhile, new functions to the Financial
Process Management System had been implemented to support
streamlined financial policy and term contract approval.

We recognise the importance of cybersecurity for information asset
protection against emerging cyber threats. We thus fortified our
security posture by strengthening the cybersecurity defense system,
through updating the Web Advanced Persistent Threat System and
continuously monitoring our working environment via Security
Information & Event Management system. During the year, an effective
phishing attack simulation and information security workshops were
conducted to heighten our staff's awareness of the possible risks.

With our commitment to green technology and sustainability, a total of
289 used computers was donated to charitable organisations for reuse
or recycling. We have also deployed e-Paper solution to reduce the use
of physical copies for internal meetings.

RESEBTE  BEHREFAKREZIER
MABRANLERRZRS  RERATTFERE
W) % & 8 Z 47 (Housing Property Management
System) - AE TN HEEWET [HSEE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Bz SNENRES

EY =x

To the members of Hong Kong Housing Society
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under The Hong Kong Housing Society
Incorporation Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Housing Society
(the “Housing Society”) set out on pages 125 to 201, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in net assets and the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Housing Society as at 31 March 2019, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those

standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of

the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Housing Society in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided
in that context.
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Key audit matters (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matter
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
financial statements.

Impairment of investment properties

Included in the Housing Society’s investment properties are certain rental
estates and properties built on land granted by the government (the “Rental
Estates and Properties”). The aggregate net carrying value of the Rental
Estates and Properties was HK$5,545.0 million as at 31 March 2019 and they
are carried at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses.

At the end of the reporting period, management performed an impairment
assessment on the Rental Estates and Properties. Their recoverable amounts
were estimated based on value-in-use calculation. The impairment
assessment of the Rental Estates and Properties is significant to our audit
due to the significant judgements and estimates involved in the
determination of the value-in-use calculation with respect to the cash flow
projection based on the financial budget approved by management.
Reversal of impairment loss of HK$24.0 million was recognised for the
completed properties of the Rental Estates and Properties during the year.

Disclosures in relation to the investment properties are included in notes
24,3 and 12 to the financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

In evaluating management’s impairment assessment, we involved our
valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating the valuation methodology
and key parameters, including the discount rate, prepared by management
of the Housing Society. Our procedures also included assessment of the key
assumptions such as the budgeted rental price, growth rate and estimated
construction costs to complete based on our knowledge of the business
and development plan of the Housing Society.

We also assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures in the notes to the

financial statements.

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2018/19
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The Executive Committee members are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in
the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Executive Committee
members for the financial statements

The Executive Committee members are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the Executive
Committee members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Executive Committee members
are responsible for assessing the Housing Society’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Executive
Committee members either intend to liquidate the Housing Society or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Executive Committee members are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Housing Society’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 60 of the Constitution of the Hong Kong Housing Society, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Housing Society’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Executive Committee members.

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2018/19

% 28X 6 7t &8 5t B I IR R AEMS
fE

AMMER RUMBRREBRETE
15 e 7 BB o 85 BR T 24 B B A S AR AR
REABRE LTHABERMNEANK
B RS - RMUBEAEEHEBES
ATHRENEE(FR—EEE)RE - B
BEBASh - AEW MEMAR - ROITE
REBRARENANTAETLMBALE £
HABEMELE -

ABEREBEESSDKFIOERE  EFRER
REBEBBRTEAETNES  EX—EKX
B8 AR R LT FE B AR BE BE IR o SRARMRUM AT PA
HEGFSEH RSB RAEAHEME
B E BRI T BE R B S AR A K
FERF TSR AT O EIRE - RIBRERY
SERERPRAM AT RARAEE K ©

EREBEEBESENETEAANBES -
BPERTEXRHE  RETERRRE
& o HAITT

78 Bl AN RY A e 7 R 2 8E AR T S R
BHRAFEERNEREANRRE - &
FERMITE IR F A E S LR -
AR ERFRMEENEEE  F
REMEROER - EH SHRFERI BB
RER - BE R //% FE R R
ik i/ﬁ’%’?&’/\ﬁ?*ﬁ %'JZL Sl S

B % T R BRRF M S B A0 B2 K 8 AR Rt
E’Jﬂxxmb"\ﬂi LR AR MG HA
EREERRA A R

T AR AR R RO R AR I
?E?E’J%pﬁif'ﬂﬂﬁmjr#ﬁ)%}%
HEREIEHNAREERRER

AEHTREEXBMERAERR
MR EEREL A MERRE
BN -



Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Executive Committee
members’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Housing Society’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Housing Society to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the % SNEM A BT AT IR AENS
financial statements (continued) (RC )

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine HERZEZESBERBNEEY  RARTE
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial MLEEE NP BERENETRAEE
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. A BB 5T H1H - B MR EEN R
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation SR MELEIE  RIPERER DA
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare ARBERELEE I EBHERNER
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in T MREGBERHERMBSHBEEES
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would BHEKNWEEERRBREEN AR -
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such BIAENEERER EBZEE -

communication.

Ernst & Young RGBT
Certified Public Accountants HEEEAD

22/F CITIC Tower BBEFRIR

1 Tim Mei Avenue NEB R

Central Hong Kong FEAE=+Z#

18 July 2019 —ET-AEtA+NH
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Audited Financial Statements
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FRHREE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—Z— AW E=A=1+—HLEE

(in HK$Million) Note i 5
Income WA
Revenue EEWA 1,884.2 1,750.5
Other income HAaBA 46.8 449
1,931.0 1,7954
Expenditure *H
Write back of property development and L EL I Y R =]
related costs PN EIE (58.6) (249.5)
Staff costs Bk TRk AR 525.2 492.1
Property leasing and management expenses EFHEREESH 655.1 664.2
Depreciation and amortisation e e 347.0 3583
Investment properties impairment/ BEMERE
(reversal of impairment) CRBER#) (24.0) 100.2
Other expenses H bz 253.2 206.0
Auditor’s remuneration ZER & 0.5 05
1,698.4 1,571.8
Surplus before investment income RE W AR 2R 232.6 2236
Investment income BERA
Investment related financial assets BHARENUBEE
and liabilities kafE
— Gain on disposal — HERH 772.9 1,0182
— Increase/(decrease) in fair value — AR EEEM CF) (736.0) 2,304.6
Other investment income HREWA 815.8 264.8
852.7 3,587.6
Net surplus and total comprehensive REEEGBRTFHER
income for the year 2EE 1,085.3 3,811.2
The notes on pages 130 to 201 form part of these financial statements. F1302F 201 B FBAMBEHREN —
A
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RIS IR IR E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—Z - AW E=A=1+—HLEE

(in HK$Million) Note Fff&F
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investment properties wEYE 12 9,530.0 9,7554
Property and equipment EYSE 13 285.0 288.8
Loans receivable FEIRE K 14 79.4 13122
9,894.4 10,1754
Current assets REEE
Properties under development for sale ELERENERERYE 15 3,638.7 2,695.3
Investment related financial assets BHEEENMBEE 16 23,959.8 23,1212
Loans receivable FEURE 5K 14 11.1 139
Accounts receivable, prepayments FEUERTE TENEBRA &
and other assets HhEE 17 1,027.1 955.9
Cash and bank balances I & RIRTTHEER 18 8,612.7 8,849.0
37,2494 35,6353
Current liabilities RBEE
Accounts payable, sundry deposits JERERIE - MIEE S K&
and accruals FERTIEHE 19 (1,454.9) (1,433.9)
Forward sales deposits received EREEEFIT S 20 (648.9) (648.9)
Investment related financial liabilities BREKRENYKARE 16 (45.7) (68.5)
Provisions AE(E 21 (98.1) (133.6)
Loans from government BITE R 22 (3.5) (3.5)
(2,251.1) (2,288.4)
Net current assets RBEEFEE 34,998.3 33,3469
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Lease income received in advance TEUAE & 19 (1,453.8) (1,165.2)
Loans from government BT E R 22 (36.1) (39.6)
(1,489.9) (1,204.8)
Net assets BEEFH 43,402.8 423175

HREBIEZ20MHENPBERREN_-Z
—NELtATN\BEATEZESHERK
R WHTHIEZERES

The financial statements on pages 125 to 201 were approved by the
Executive Committee and authorised for issue on 18 July 2019 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Chan Kar-lok (Chairman)
K L Wong (Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director)

RR%(L/E)
B (TTHAHFRNTREE)

13025201 BERNM B AT SRR —

5 e

The notes on pages 130 to 201 form part of these financial statements.

o8
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

2 == \uF (o £24
SEFEEEIME
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—Z— AW E=A=1+—HLEE

(in HK$Million)

Net assets BERE
Accumulated surplus RE&E
At 1 April MH—H 42,317.5 38,506.3
Net surplus and total comprehensive income AREERBBFRENEE NS
for the year 1,085.3 3,811.2
At 31 March =A=+—H 43,402.8 42,317.5
The notes on pages 130 to 201 form part of these financial statements. F1302F 201 B FBAMBEHREN —
A
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Audited Financial Statements E & 1% 81 #5 3 &

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—Z - AW E=A=1+—HLEE

(in HK$Million)

Cash flows from operating activities EETHEERE
Cash receipts from tenants RAEFAWERIR & 2,204.3 2,500.9
Cash receipts from flat buyers HEFERMBIBNEE 2.1 285.1
Cash receipts from property owners WEFETWENIE S 33.6 288
Cash payments for property leasing and management BEFHEREENESYH (682.9) (659.6)
Cash payments for site acquisition UeiE i RBERAAHR ST N (984.9) (622.8)

and project development
Cash payments to employees in respect of salaries ETHMEERAIREST H (562.9) (533.8)

and other benefits
Cash payments for social projects MHEHEMESTH (23.0) (13.4)
Cash receipts for top up loans granted to flat buyers ERREHEEFTFERAWNIMAIRS 47.9 173.6
Other cash payments EHhIRe T H (184.7) (58.4)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EEEHESRA(RE) FHE

operating activities (150.5) 1,100.4
Cash flows from investing activities REZTHRERE
Interest received FEUA 314.4 210.5
Dividends received A2 A 228.2 199.1
Maturity/(placement) of time deposits EHEFEHREEH(EN) 3,651.5 (1,228.0)
Payment for development of investment properties KEMEERESH (121.3) (287.6)
Payment for property and equipment MEE KRGS (13.9) (123)
Payment for investments, net FIRE ST W (375.2) (1,006.0)
Payment for investment management fees KEEEBESTH (114.7) (108.5)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment HEMERZBEDMEEIE 0.2 0.1
Net cash generated from/(used in) BRETBHRSHRAGRL) B8

investing activities 3,569.2 (2,232.7)
Cash used in financing activities REIHELSRE
Repayment of loans from the government BEBFER (3.5) (3.6)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRRSEEER

and cash equivalents #inGRd) FEE 3,415.2 (1,135.9)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April MA—HELSRREEEEALE 509.0 1,644.9
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March ZA=+—HHRERBLEE

HE&ERF 3,924.2 509.0

The notes on pages 130 to 201 form part of these financial statements. F130E
aN
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

= =
IRERER (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ—Z— AW E=A=1+—HLEE

(in HK$Million)
Analysis of cash and bank balances RERBITHESRDN
Balances of cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEEIEE & 3,924.2 509.0
Time deposits with maturity of more than three months #8318 = & B 2| 2960 & HA77 3% 4,688.5 8,340.0
Cash and bank balances in the statement of MBARR R A 2R & R

financial position IRITEERR 8,612.7 8,849.0

The notes on pages 130 to 201 form part of these financial statements. F1302F 201 B FBAMBEHREN —
B o
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Audited Financial Statements E & 1% 81 #5 3 &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R s ¥ 2 Bid 5F

21

2.2

General information

Hong Kong Housing Society (the “Housing Society”) was incorporated
on 18 May 1951 under the Hong Kong Housing Society Incorporation
Ordinance. The address of its registered office and principal place of
business is 29/F, World Trade Centre, 280 Gloucester Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Housing Society are property sales,
leasing, management and financing, which are all conducted in Hong
Kong.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”") and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial instruments which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Housing Society, and all values are rounded to the nearest million
except when otherwise indicated.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Housing Society has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial statements,
which are applicable to the Housing Society.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKAS 40 — Transfers of Investment Property

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2018/19
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are
described below:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three aspects of the
accounting for financial instruments: classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting.

Classification and measurement

There was no transition adjustments recognised by the Housing
Society against the applicable opening balances at 1 April 2018. The
comparative information was not restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS 39.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, the Housing Society’s investment
related financial assets and financial liabilities continue to be
measured at fair value through profit or loss; all other financial assets
and financial liabilities continue to be measured at amortised cost.
There was no significant impact on the measurement and
classification of financial instruments on the financial position.

Impairment of financial assets

The Housing Society was required to revise its impairment
methodology under HKFRS 9 for each of these classes of assets. The
restatement of the loss allowance for these classes of assets on
transition to HKFRS 9 as a result of applying the expected credit risk
model was immaterial. Therefore, the carrying amount for these
classes of assets and the accumulated surplus at 1 April 2018 have
not been impacted by the initial application of HKFRS 9. Further
details are disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements.
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Audited Financial Statements E & 1% 81 #5 3 &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R KRBl 5

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and it applies,
with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The disclosures are included in note 6 to
the financial statements. As a result of the application of HKFRS 15,
the Housing Society has changed the accounting policy with respect
to revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

The Housing Society has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method, the standard
can be applied either to all contracts at the date of initial application
or only to contracts that are not completed at this date. The Housing
Society has elected to apply the standard to contracts that are not
completed as at 1 April 2018.

Hong Kong Housing Society Annual Report 2018/19
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)
HKFRS 15 (continued)

The comparative information was not restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS 11, HKAS 18 and related interpretations.

The nature of the adjustments as at 1 April 2018 and the reasons for
the changes in the statement of financial position as at 31 March
2019 are described below:

Consideration received from customers in advance

Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Housing Society recognised
consideration received from customers in advance for the sale of
properties as receipt in advance which are included in forward sales
deposits received. Under HKFRS 15, the amount is classified as
contract liabilities which are included in forward sales deposits
received. Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Housing Society
reclassified HK$648.9 million from receipt in advance to contract
liabilities as at 1 April 2018 in relation to the consideration received
from customers in advance as at 1 April 2018.

Under HKFRS 15, the consideration received from customers in
advance of HK$648.9 million as at 31 March 2019 for the sale of
properties was classified as contract liabilities instead of receipt in
advance.

HKAS 40

Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify when an entity should transfer
property, including property under construction or development,
into or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet,
the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the
change in use. A mere change in management's intentions for the
use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Housing Society.
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Audited Financial Statements E & 1% 81 #5 3 &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R KRBl 5

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong 23 2R mBRERZEEBITE
Financial Reporting Standards &S XL
The Housing Society has not applied the following new and revised P51 & W R A2 35 L B HS Sk P R A
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective in these 5B M E A R A B R ET R A S
financial statements, which are expected to be relevant to the FIBAMBREEN - MZREMBER
Housing Society upon becoming effective: REHERAEBERNREEEHBEAE

A
HKFRS 16 — Leases' BREMBHELYNET R —HE'
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of Material? BEEGHERE R REAY
STERIENGE (1BFT) — EAAY
EE>
U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 ! RZTE—NF-—A—BRXZ2EREN
FEHEAER
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 2 R-ZB-_ZF—A—BZ2RFABH
FEHM AR

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be ERAEHERAREEHR SN A BYB
applicable to the Housing Society is described below. WMEEAHE—FERDET o
HKFRS 16 SE RS ENFE 7R
HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining BBV BREERE L+ \SJTHMJQ%’/E
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating S EAE+T LR — HE - FE(H
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of BB mERBEES ) = %% 2|
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out W — BEELHELEEHE BB
the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and (BRIZREZES) ZEBE AR —
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and HEHE — BERES(CERREZR
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective BEg)-RBE-_TER —FELE
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and HEZZFEARZHAND - ZE8#H
short-term leases. TR FE - 2 REBEHEENR

B - WEKABARAZHEERR
BERBE ZEABFEHR TAHEA
MR ERERAR LA HERE — KE
BEEEHEREGHEE -
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
HKFRS 16 (continued)

At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a
liability to make lease payments (i.e. the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease
term (i.e. the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease
liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required
to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and
the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also
be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of
certain events, such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine those payments.

Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the
accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires
lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under
HKAS 17.
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Audited Financial Statements E & 1% 81 #5 3 &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s KBl 5E

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong 23 ERMmBAREVR 2EEMFE

Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
HKFRS 16 (continued)

Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The Housing
Society will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019. The Housing Society
plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognise
the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to the
opening balance of accumulated surplus at 1 April 2019 and will not
restate the comparatives. In addition, the Housing Society plans to
apply the new requirements to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability
at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the Housing Society’s incremental borrowing rate at the date
of initial application. The right-of-use asset will be measured at the
amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised in the
statement of financial position immediately before the date of initial
application. The Housing Society plans to use the exemption allowed
by the standard on lease contracts whose lease term end within 12
months as of the date of initial application. During the year ended 31
March 2019, the Housing Society has performed a detailed
assessment on the impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 and does not
expect the adoption of HKFRS 16 as compared with the current
accounting policy would result in any significant impact on the
Housing Society’s financial statements.

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendment to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statement.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. The Housing Society expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Housing Society’s
financial statements.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Housing Society measures its investment related financial assets
and investment related financial liabilities at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Housing Society. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Housing Society uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2—  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3—  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Housing Society determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or group of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the comprehensive income in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the comprehensive
income in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 F

LSTHRIBE @

(continued)
Related parties FAEAL
(@  Aperson, or a close member of that person’s family, is related (@ MWMBLATAL: G BIZALEHZ

to the Housing Society if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Housing Society;

(i) has significant influence over the Housing Society; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Housing Society;

or 54

(b)  Anentity is related to the Housing Society if any of the (b)
following conditions applies:

(i) Theentity is a post-employment benefit plan for the

benefit of employees of either the Housing Society or an
entity related to the Housing Society.

(i) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a) above.

(i) A person identified in (a)(i) above has significant
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(iii)

Fit
influence over the entity or is a member of the key j:%ﬁ%a BEEATEN
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of SRZER(RZEER
the entity). NAEWEEBEEEAS
B8 o
Close members of the family of a person are those family members —BATHIREEEEHEEERS
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person WA EZATHZZATEER
in their dealings with the entity. KEERKE °
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Property and equipment and depreciation

Property and equipment held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property and
equipment over the estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the unexpired period of the land lease
Buildings Over the estimated economic useful lives of

40 years or the unexpired period of the
land lease, whichever is shorter

Equipment 20%-25%

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits is expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
comprehensive income in the year in which the asset is
derecognised.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Housing Society is the lessor, assets leased by the Housing
Society under operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
comprehensive income on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are carried at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

No depreciation is provided for investment properties under
development until such asset is ready for its intended use.
Depreciation on completed properties is provided to write off the
cost of the properties over the estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the unexpired period of the land lease

Buildings Over the estimated economic useful lives of 40 to 60
years or the unexpired period of the land lease,
whichever is the shorter

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits is expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the comprehensive income in the year in which
the asset is derecognised.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Housing Society’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of account receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Housing Society has applied
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Housing Society initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Account
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Housing Society has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition
(applicable from 1 April 2018)" below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The Housing Society's business model for managing financial assets

refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Housing Society commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

(a)  Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Housing Society measures financial assets at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in comprehensive
income when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(b)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair
value. Financial asset are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, debt instruments may be designated
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the comprehensive income.

Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the comprehensive income when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Housing
Society and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

Financial assets recognised in the statement of financial position
when the Housing Society becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than “financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss”) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” are recognised immediately
as an expense in the comprehensive income.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less any identified
impairment losses. Appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the comprehensive
income when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. The impairment recognised is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an
increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018) (continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise
investment related financial assets (including equity and debt
securities, hedge fund and financial derivative assets) (see
“investment related financial assets/liabilities” as described in
Note 16). These financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale
of an investment is under a contract whose terms require
delivery/settlement of the investment within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are measured at fair
value.

Realised gains and losses from the investment transactions,
and unrealised gains and losses from changes in fair value at
the end of the reporting period, are included in the
comprehensive income for the period. Until realisation, gains
and losses may fluctuate subsequent to the end of the
reporting period depending on market movements in
investment prices and foreign exchange rates.

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 April 2018)

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Housing Society has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received is recognised in the comprehensive
income.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018)

The Housing Society recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (the “ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Housing Society expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

At each reporting date, the Housing Society assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Housing Society
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018) (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Housing Society considers a financial asset (excluding loans
receivable) in default when contractual payments are 90 days past
due; and a loans receivable in default when any borrowers are unable
to settle overdue instalments for more than six months. However, in
certain cases, the Housing Society may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information indicates that
the Housing Society is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Housing Society. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash
flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for account receivables and
contract assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 —  Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 —  Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 —  Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018) (continued)

Simplified approach

For account receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Housing Society
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Housing Society applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Housing Society does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Housing Society has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For account receivables and contract assets that contain a significant
financing component and lease receivables, the Housing Society
chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1
April 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings or
payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Housing Society's financial liabilities include accounts payable,
sundry deposits and accruals, investment related financial liabilities,
provision for financial guarantee and loans from government.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1
April 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

(a)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Housing Society that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the comprehensive income. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the comprehensive income does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied.
Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in the comprehensive income,
except for the gains or losses arising from the Housing Society’s
own credit risk which are presented in other comprehensive
income with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of
comprehensive income. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the comprehensive income does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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Audited Financial Statements E & 1% 81 #5 3 &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s KBl 5E

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1
April 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(b)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprise
investment-related financial liabilities (including financial
derivative liabilities), (see “investment related financial
liabilities” as described in Note 16). The financial liabilities are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis where the
purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose
terms require delivery/settlement of the investment within the
timeframe established by the market concerned, and are
measured at fair value.

Realised gains and losses from the investment transactions,
and unrealised gains and losses from changes in fair value at
the end of the reporting period, are included in the
comprehensive income for the period. Until realisation, gains
and losses may fluctuate subsequent to the end of the
reporting period depending on market movements in
investment prices and foreign exchange rates.

(c)  Financial liabilities other than loans from government
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

Financial liabilities (including accounts payable and accruals)
other than loans from government are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1
April 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(d)

(e)

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Housing Society
are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified
debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Housing Society measures the financial guarantee contracts at
the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance
with the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018)"; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specific payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by the
Housing Society and not designated as at fair value through
profit or loss is subsequently measured at the higher of: (i) the
amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37 — Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.
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Audited Financial Statements E & 1% 81 #5 3 &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R KRBl 5

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 TE2EFHRIBZE @

(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

Financial liabilities are removed from the Housing Society’s statement
of financial position when the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the comprehensive income.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale in the ordinary course of
business are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of properties under development for sale comprises
specifically identified cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials and supplies, wages and
other direct expenses capitalised, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price, based on prevailing market
conditions, less estimated costs of completion and costs to be
incurred in selling the property.

Housing inventories

Housing inventories represent completed properties held for sale and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Housing Society’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Housing Society has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are
measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period,
and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Audited Financial Statements E & 1% 81 #5 3 &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R KRBl 5

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Government grants and assistance

Government grants received or receivable are recognised as income
over the period necessary to match them with the related costs.
Grants related to depreciable assets received or receivable are
presented as a deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant
asset and are recognised as income over the useful lives of the assets
by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Government assistance relating to land obtained from the
government without a premium being charged are recorded by the
Housing Society at a nominal amount.

Loans from government granted before 1 April 2009 at nil or low
interest rate are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the contractual rate.

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Housing Society expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Housing Society
will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018)

(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods
or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate

financing transaction between the Housing Society and the customer

at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Housing Society a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a)  Sales of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held for sale is
recognised when the respective properties have been
completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to the date of
revenue recognition are included in the statement of financial
position under forward sales deposits received.

(b) Render of service

Revenue from provision of property management service is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis
because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Housing Society.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income and facilities rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.
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Audited Financial Statements E & 1% 81 #5 3 &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s KBl 5E

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 April 2018)

(continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Housing Society and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 April 2018)

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Housing Society and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the
comprehensive income as follows:

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held for sale is recognised
when the respective properties have been completed and delivered
to the buyers. Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in the
statement of financial position under forward sales deposits received.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in the
comprehensive income in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

Management fee income is recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 April 2018)

(continued)

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Defined Contribution Retirement Benefit Scheme and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense when

employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.
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Audited Financial Statements E & 1% 81 #5 3 &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS R KRBl 5

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the
Housing Society (foreign currencies) are initially recorded at the rates
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was measured. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currencies are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Housing Society’s senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Housing Society's various lines
of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide the services. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.
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Significant accounting estimates

The preparation of the Housing Society’s financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Housing Society assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting
period and they are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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Capital risk management

The Housing Society's capital comprises primarily the surplus
accumulated since its establishment and its objective when
managing capital is to ensure that the Housing Society will be able to
continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide quality
housing and services for the Hong Kong community.

Given that the Housing Society’s funding is mainly raised internally,
the policies on capital risk management are therefore focused on
how to preserve the surplus funds in order to achieve the above
capital management objective. Related policies on preserving the
surplus funds are set out in note 5.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Housing Society's major financial instruments comprise the

SRERER
FEBEMEAEERAARIUR
FEMNAL - AEAEENANR
ERREEHBERBELTRES
HREHEERRE KRS -

ENFEWENETTEIANE
S NERREREERRNEEH R
MEREBREBES  WED EER
EEAR - FEREAEKEDSNIERM
BERENMER -

MIFRIRERBIRKRIERR

FEHBE<IRHBTARE

followings:

(in HK$Million) (B¥EET)
Investment related financial assets BRAKENMIEERE 23,959.8 23,1212
Investment related financial liabilities BRAKENMEEE (45.7) (68.5)
Financial assets at amortised cost BEHEHEN ARV B EE

(including cash and bank balances) (BIEIR S MERTTASER) 9,720.1 9,942.3
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RIFEHE A EA RN IS & (& (1,333.9) (1,3326)
Loans from government BIRER (39.6) (43.1)

Details of the above financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies applied by the Housing Society to mitigate these
risks are set out below. Management monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and
effective manner.
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5. Financial risk management objectives and
pOliCieS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk

The Housing Society is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk
that a counterparty may default on its bank deposits, fixed
income investments and accounts receivable or the Housing
Society may be required to pay if the financial guarantee is
called on. The Housing Society’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Housing Society in
the event of the counterparty's failure to perform their
obligations at the end of the reporting period in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets and the financial
guarantees provided are the carrying amounts of those assets
as stated in the statement of financial position and the amount
of financial guarantee disclosed in note 21(b).

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 March
2019

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Housing Society’s credit
policy, which is mainly based on past due information unless
other information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 March 2019. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets and the exposure to credit risk for the financial
guarantee contracts.

5. UIBRKRESREERKEER @

(a)
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5. Financial risk management objectives and 5. BiEREREIZE IR K EBR @
pO"CieS (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) BEERR @
12-month
ECLs
+={@A
EHEE Lifetime ECLs
BB 2HEHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 approach
(in HK$Million) (B¥EET) F—RER H-BER HE=ZBR [BtEE
Rent receivables FEURFR & = = = 138 138
Loans receivable FEWE K
— Normal* = EE* 843 - - - 843
— Doubtful* — A EE* - 36 - - 36
— Loss* — RER* - - 26 - 26

Financial assets included in  BE& a8 & A
prepayments and other AE & E AR
assets I EE

— Normal* — [EE* 1,003.1 = = = 1,003.1
Cash and bank balances R RIRITRE

— Not yet past due — AR Hp 86127 - - - 86127
Guarantees given to banks in £2£R 7715 17
connection with mortgage & 7H 78
loans** RO (RS *
— Not yet past due — R Hf 1,196.7 = = - 1,197
10,896.8 3.6 26 13.8  10,916.8
* The credit quality of the loans receivable and financial assets is S EURERRGBEEENERE
considered to be (i) “normal” when they are not past due and there SWHEAGOERD AR BR
is no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant BiZE XA VB TERAKE
increase in credit risk since initial recognition; (i) “"doubtful” when BKEENERRERBEIRINAG
there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial [IE®E | (i) B YR FEZR AN
recognition based on information from internal or external HRRIKIN I ERHEE
resources; and (iii) “loss” when there is evidence indicating the asset EHREBBEELINE AR
is credit-impaired. R (i) BBBEREETFERER
AR [REK] -
** The guarantees given to banks in connection with mortgage loans e HETHHEREGHORER
represents the maximum amount the Housing Society has EEHE NI ERES RFTR
guaranteed under the respective financial guarantee contracts. st
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5. Financial risk management objectives and
pOliCieS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 March
2018

For bank deposits, the Housing Society limits its exposure by
placing funds only with investment grade licensed banks as
approved by Hong Kong Monetary Authority. To ensure there
is no significant concentration of credit risk to a single
counterparty, procedures are in place to ensure diversification
and the bank deposits placed with each counterparty are
subject to a maximum limit and this limit is monitored on an
on-going basis.

For fixed income investments, most of the holdings are of
investment grades securities and there are restrictions on the
holding limit of below investment grades securities.

The Housing Society has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Housing Society is not able to
meet its obligations and commitments as they fall due. All the
Housing Society’s investments are kept sufficiently liquid and
readily realisable to meet operation needs and any unexpected
cash demands. In addition, the Housing Society also monitors
the liquidity risk by performing cash flow analysis on a regular
basis.

Apart from certain accounts payable and loans from
government which are not expected to be settled within one
year after the end of the reporting period as disclosed in notes
19 and 22 to the financial statements, all other financial
liabilities, which are non-interest bearing, are expected to be
settled within one year.

5. UIBRKRESREERKEER @

(a)

(b)

EE @R @
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5. Financial risk management objectives and
pO"CieS (continued)

(c)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from the movement of
foreign exchange rates, interest rates and market price of
securities. The Housing Society is exposed to market risk

through its investments in equities and fixed income

investments.

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Housing Society's foreign currency positions arise
mainly from its financial assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollar
and United States dollar. The exchange risk between
Hong Kong dollar and United States dollar is considered
insignificant since Hong Kong dollar is pegged to United
States dollar.

The Housing Society is exposed to foreign currency risk
through its fixed deposits, equity investments and fixed
income investments. The foreign exchange risk on fixed

deposits is controlled and monitored by allocation limits.

The equity and fixed income investments, which are
managed by fund managers, are denominated in a
basket of currencies. The fund managers are encouraged
to hedge their foreign currency exposures to Hong Kong
dollar or United States dollar in accordance with the
investment guidelines.
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5. Financial risk management objectives and
pO"CieS (continued)

(c) Market risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Housing Society’s surplus that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Housing Society has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period
had changed at that date, assuming all other risk
variables remained constant.

Currency
strengthened/
weakened by

AEZRE

Euro B 7 1%
Pound Sterling RS 1%
Japanese Yen Hit 1%
Other currencies Hih 5 1%

Price risk

The Housing Society is exposed to price risk arising from
investment related financial assets and liabilities. This risk
is controlled and monitored by asset allocation limit.

At the end of the reporting period, it is estimated that an
increase/decrease of 1% (2018: 1%) in the market prices
of the investment related financial assets and liabilities,
with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Housing Society’s surplus by
approximately HK$239.1 million (2018: HK$230.5 million).

5. BiIXERSIEEIERBER @

(c)

Effect on
surplus for
the year

HAF R
He e

(in HK$MiIiion)
(B¥EET)

10.1
5.6
4.2

18.9

iz @R (@)

(i)

(ii)

o185 44 R (1)
SRE A
TRERRBE BRI
BB HEERS
WEEHEZ RS TH
AEEH(REE AR
RERRTE) -

Currency Effect on

strengthened/ surplus for

weakened by the year

HARFRR

FHE BB HE

(in HKSMillion)

(B¥AET)

1% 12.2

1% 54

1% 24

1% 18.5
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5. Financial risk management objectives and
pO"CieS (continued)

(c) Market risk (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Price risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the changes
in the market prices of the investment related financial
assets and liabilities or other relevant risk variables had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to re-measure those investment related
financial assets and liabilities held by the Housing Society
which expose the Housing Society to price risk at the
end of the reporting period.

Interest rate risk

The Housing Society's exposure on cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk mainly arises from
its loans receivable and time deposits.

As the time deposits usually mature within one year, the
exposure is considered not material. Management of the
Housing Society monitors the interest rate profile of
loans receivable regularly.

Sensitivity analysis

At the end of the reporting period, it is assumed that a
general increase/decrease of 50 basis points (2018: 50
basis points) in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased the Housing
Society's surplus by approximately HK$43.1 million (2018:
HKS$44.6 million).
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5. Financial risk management objectives and 5. HIREREIREBIREER @
pOliCieS (continued)

(d)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (d)
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Housing
Society’s financial assets and liabilities measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs, i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1,
and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.
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5. Financial risk management objectives and 5. BiEREREIZE IR K EBR @
pO"CieS (continued)
(d) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (d) HBREELSERAABE

value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

& @)

nRBESR @

Recurring fair value measurement &HEMHAREBENE Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in HK$Million) (B¥EER) E—R ER E=R
Investment related financial assets BERARENTHEE
(note 16) (MFzE+7%) 13,913.7 8,229.2 1,816.9 23,959.8
Investment related financial liabilities BRRENVEEE
(note 16) (B sE+75) (16.8) (28.9) - (45.7)
13,896.9 8,200.3 1,816.9 23,914.1

Recurring fair value measurement EEMH A A EBENE Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in HK$Million) (BEEET) £—R ER E=R
Investment related financial assets EHERENNKEE
(note 16) (BsE+75) 13,4459 7,950.9 17244 23,1212
Investment related financial liabilities ~ BRI ENHF KA E
(note 16) (MtzEt+7%) (5.2) (63.3) - (68.5)
13,440.7 7,887.6 1,7244 23,052.7

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2019, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 or no transfers into or
out of Level 3. The Housing Society’s policy is to recognise
transfer between levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of
reporting period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 1 and 2
fair value measurements

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices
in active markets, and therefore classified within Level 1,
include active listed equities, exchange traded derivatives,
government treasury bills and certain sovereign obligations.
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5. Financial risk management objectives and
pO"CieS (continued)

(d)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 1 and 2
fair value measurements (continued)

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not
considered to be active but are valued based on quoted
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources
supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2.
These include investment-grade corporate bonds, sovereign
obligations and certain unit trusts. As Level 2 investments
include positions that are not traded in active markets and/or
are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted
to reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability, which are
generally based on available market information.

The Level 3 includes financial instruments which values are
based on unobservable inputs. These are mostly unit trusts.
Their net asset values are provided by respective administrators
of the unit trust.

Movement of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial

assets is as follows:

5.

BFRMREREERNER @

(d)

M EERGBERAREBE
HE
F—RE_MrnEESS
Fir {52 FB 2 1&5 18 73 % K2 83 (7@)
RETRAERMBRNEER
BEMSHRE X5 REKF
A AT B 5% SR A H M E B AR
MPBETASEREAE 4 -
ZETHABERERNOEZE
BF TREBRELENE
AEES - BARE-_REBE
WHREEMEEER, KA
SHEROEL  HETHE
F AR A RBIEREN MR
TATEREYE - H—R ARG
mISERAKE -

F=REERRTAIBRBIEM
BzUBIE TEREME
E-RFEEFEHTBZE
B ARTERY -

E-MMBEED R EEHE
MEBNT

(in HK$Million) (B¥EET)

At 1 April MmA—H 1,724.4 1,368.9
Gain recognised in the comprehensive income 7% T Y & A 72 B9 s 7l 61.1 96.6
Purchase g 31.4 2589
At 31 March =A=+—8 1,816.9 1,724.4

The fair value of the above investments is positively correlated
to the net asset value of the underlying investment funds. Due
to the inherent uncertainty of the estimates, the fair value of
Level 3 financial assets may differ from the values that would
have been used had a ready market for these investments
existed and the difference could be material.
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6. Revenue 6. ZEXIRA
(in HK$Million) (B®EHET)
Revenue from contract with customers: KEEFERZ Kz :
Revenue from property sales HEMERURA - =
Revenue from property management MEEEBEIA 18.9 18.6
18.9 18.6
Revenue from other sources: B FRKA
Revenue from property leasing YIEHEEWA 1,860.6 1,720.8
Interest income from loans receivable JE U B TR SR 4.7 1.1
1,865.3 1,731.9
Total revenue BB ZEA 1,884.2 1,750.5
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) HEHRWABE
For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE_ZT-—NF=A=+—8
IEFE
Property Other
(in HK$Million) (B¥EEBT) sales  operations
Segments 2 =B YIEHE Hih&E
Type of goods or services BmE R EE
Property sales e - - -
Property management services Y E B RG - 18.9 18.9
Total revenue from contracts KEEPE R W ia
with customers - 18.9 18.9

Timing of revenue recognition W A FE R RS
Property transferred at a point in time £ & (S ] Zh 38 7% 2 ) % - - -

Services transferred over time BE RS 22 2 RS - 18.9 18.9
- 18.9 18.9
No revenue recognised in the current reporting period was R ERARNERHBARG A
included in the forward sales deposits received (i.e. contract HEHYVHNEREBESEEFIT
liabilities) at the beginning of the reporting period and (ERBME) WEABAETH
recognised from performance obligations satisfied in previous BHIE ISR -
periods.
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6. Revenue (continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations

Information about the Housing Society’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Revenue from property sales

The performance obligation is satisfied when the respective

properties have been completed and delivered to the buyers.

Revenue from property management

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and short-term advances are normally required
before rendering the services. Management service contracts
are for periods of one year or less, or are billed based on the

time incurred.

7. Otherincome

Included in other income is a donation from the Hong Kong Jockey
Club Charities Trust of HK$3.9 million (2018: HK$0.8 million) to fund
the construction of a footbridge at Tuen Mun River.

6. BEIWAm@m

(i)

BRSEE
MAERHEENELZER
BEAZA T -

HEMRAUEA
BHEEEE@EMNMERT I
HERGBERRKIL -

MEREIRUA
BHOETEMRBEREHR—MSE
BT REREREZAERESR
ERMEMNK - EEREA R
MHRA—FHER  HRIE
ELENFHE -

7. HftltA
A BEEERSERERSEE
£ REBEFIATARBRRMHBR
MEBZBNLTETL(ZE—N\F:
BENTET) -
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8.

Investment income 8. KR&EWRA
(in HK$Million) (B®EHET)
Investment related financial assets EBRENMKEEERAR
and liabilities
Gain on disposal & 772.9 1,018.2
Increase/(decrease) in fair value, net N BEZFLEIN/CRD) (736.0) 2,304.6
36.9 3,322.8

Other investment income HibgEWA

Interest income B A 318.4 2253

Dividend income BB WA 228.2 199.1

Exchange differences P H ZRE 269.2 (159.6)
815.8 264.8
852.7 3,587.6

Movements in fair value on investments are unrealised and may
fluctuate subsequent to the end of the reporting period subject to
subsequent market movements in investment prices and foreign
exchange rates.

Executive Committee members’ emoluments 9.

The aggregate emoluments of the members of the Executive
Committee (excluding the Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director; and the Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing
(Housing) being ex officio members of the Executive Committee who
are not entitled to receive any emolument) are as follows:

(BEEAT)

(in HK$Million)

Honorarium

iFiika

BENDABENBH SRR
FiAS B s BRENTIHEREE
18 RN R R B T

HiTLE8ZE8 s

HITZBEZR(TTRARRATA

BRENEGREEREENER(E
BE)RI ARERATEEENE
REE TEIXEAME) 2MEE

T

1.1 1.0
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9. Executive Committee members’ emoluments 9. MTZEBZTEHEmW
(continued)
Their emoluments fall within the following bands: HEen THIER

Emoluments band MEERK
(in HK$Million) (B¥®B&r)
Nil (waived) & (E%) 2 5
Below 0.1 D01 3 2
0.1t0 0.5 0.1-0.5 5 5
10 12
10. Emoluments of the five highest paid 10. hiuRSMENERAS
management staff
The five highest paid management staff (including the Chief hfusEMENEEZAR(BREITR
Executive Officer and Executive Director) are the directorate RERPTRABE)REEHENE
executives of the Housing Society. Their aggregate emoluments are ZRE  EMsemnT
as follows:
(in HK$Million)
Basic salary, allowances, variable pay BEAXRF € 28 FZEBe
and benefits in kind RE YW 17.2 17.2
Provident fund contribution NHESHK 1.7 17
18.9 18.9
Their emoluments fall within the following bands: HEMEHD T5ZE4H -
Emoluments band & ER Number of employees
BT A"
(in HK$Million) (B¥%B&ERr) 2019 2018
25-3.0 2.5-3.0 2 1
3.0-3.5 3.0-3.5 1 3
3.5-4.0 3.5-4.0 1 -
6.0-6.5 6.0-6.5 1 1
5 5
11. Taxation 11. I8
The Housing Society is a charitable institution and is exempted from EEHERESEE - BEBHEERM
Hong Kong taxation under Section 88 of the Hong Kong Inland N+ RERRBNEETIE -

Revenue Ordinance.
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12. REME

12. Investment properties

Completed/
Purchased Properties
Properties under
¥ T, Development
(in HK$Million) BEMX BREPYX
Cost A
1 April 2017 —E—+FMA—H 14,942.1 273.1 15,215.2
Additions NE 13.1 189.8 202.9
Adjustment FEES (74.2) - (74.2)
Transfer AR 8.4 (8.4) -
31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 —E-NFE=ZA=t+—HK
—E-NFHEA—H 14,889.4 454.5 15,343.9
Additions NE 22 136.9 139.1
Adjustment BEE (62.8) - (62.8)
31 March 2019 —E-hAE=A=+—H 14,828.8 591.4 15,420.2
Depreciation and impairment ERRE
1 April 2017 —E—t+FHEA—H 4911.2 250.1 51613
Charge for the year REEIE 327.0 = 3270
Impairment loss A - 100.2 100.2
31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 “E-NF=ZA=+—HEK
—Z-N\FWMA—H 5,238.2 350.3 5,588.5
Charge for the year REEIFE 3257 = 3257
Reversal of impairment loss PERIENEIEC: (24.0) - (24.0)
31 March 2019 —E-hAEFE=A=+—H 5,539.9 350.3 5,890.2
Carrying values IREE
31 March 2019 —ZE-NAF=ZHA=+—H 9,288.9 241.1 9,530.0
31 March 2018 —E-N\F=H=+—H 9,651.2 104.2 9,755.4
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